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delivered our
promises and continued to invest for the future at
2002/03 has been a year in which we have

record levels

2 public private partnerships created
for property development and water sales

Trading income up 20% to a record £82 million
5 waterways restored,
1 new waterway built

Tranche One projects completed –

backlog of
maintenance works reduced by
61% to £15.5 million
The value of the outstanding safety-related

One of two public sector bodies selected for The Sunday Times

100 Best Companies to Work for 2003

FRONT COVER: VISITORS ENJOY A DAY AT THE RECENTLY OPENED ANDERTON BOAT LIFT
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY SU M MARY OF R ESU LTS

Financial Highlights
£ millions
Trading income
Third party funding
Government grant
Total revenue
Total expenditure
Operating loss
Share of operating profits and losses of associates and joint ventures
Profit on sale of investment properties
Profit on sale of other property rights
Net interest payable
(Loss)/profit for the financial year before taxation
Taxation
(Loss)/profit for the financial year after taxation
Property profits transferred to realised capital reserve
(Loss)/profit transferred to reserves
Average number of employees

Group
2002/03
81.7
27.9
82.0
191.6
(211.1)
(19.5)
1.1
3.8
–
–
(14.6)
4.4
(10.2)
(8.8)
(19.0)

BW
2001/02
68.0
43.0
64.6
175.6
(185.6)
(10.0)
–
2.1
45.9
(1.5)
36.5
(2.7)
33.8
(5.9)
27.9

2191

2063

In 2002/03 the BW group comprises the British Waterways Board (BW) and those subsidiaries incorporated to act solely on behalf of, and for the benefit of, BW.

TOTAL REVENUE
TRADING INCOME
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“Our canals are witnessing a rebirth and their development
has so much to offer the communities they connect”
John Craven OBE, presenter Countryfile

BRITISH WATERWAYS WANTS TO SEE A SUSTAINABLE AND
INTEGRATED NETWORK OF WATERWAYS THROUGHOUT BRITAIN,
TO PROVIDE MAXIMUM BENEFIT AND ENJOYMENT TO SOCIETY
BOTH NOW AND LONG INTO THE FUTURE.
British Waterways (BW) is a public corporation that
manages and cares for more than 2000 miles of canals
and rivers in England, Scotland and Wales.
In our work we promote the balanced achievement of:
Job creation through increased economic activity
and wealth
Effective conservation and enhancement of the
nation’s biodiversity, landscapes and built
environment
Widespread enjoyment and use of a network that is
accessible for recreation, tourism and amenity to the
widest possible cross section of society
We do this through:
Understanding and responding to our stakeholders’
and customers’ needs
Working in mutually beneficial partnerships with the
public, private and voluntary sectors
Blending best commercial practice with public sector
values
Providing advice and expertise to other bodies
Employing people who are highly motivated to
achieve these outcomes
Using management systems that facilitate taking
holistic decisions
Seeking financial sustainability and best value
for money
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We are involved in the following business activities:
Providing navigation on more than 2000 miles of
canals and rivers including freight transport facilities
Businesses based on our network: property
development, telecommunications services, water
transfer & supply and leisure services
Waterway and waterspace management and
maintenance
Leisure, tourism and recreation management
Regeneration, restoration and renewal
We are responsible to:
the Department for Environment, Food and Rural
Affairs in England and Wales
the Scottish Executive Enterprise, Transport and
Lifelong Learning Department
We work in close liaison with:
the Department for Economic Development and
Transport in Wales

NON-EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBERS

Dr George Greener, Chairman, is also Chairman of
The Big Food Group plc, Director of Reckitt Benckiser
plc, Director of JP Morgan Fleming American
Investment Trust plc, and holder of various other
directorships. He is the former Chairman of Allied
Dunbar Assurance plc, Eagle Star Holdings plc,
Threadneedle Asset Management plc and Swallow
Group. He is also a former Director of BAT Industries
plc and former Group Chief Executive Officer of
Hillsdown Holdings plc. (Age 57) P R N S

Sir Peter Soulsby, Vice Chairman, is the former leader of
Leicester City Council. He was knighted in 1999 for services
to the City of Leicester and local government. Until April 1998,
Sir Peter was chair of Leicester’s City Challenge project. He is
shortly finishing his service with the government’s Beacon
Council Advisory Panel, and is a former member of the Audit
Commission. He also Chairs the Remuneration Committee and
is a Trustee of The Waterways Trust. As a keen user of the
inland waterways system, Sir Peter has cruised the network
extensively on his own narrowboat. (Age 54) A R N

Helen Gordon is Managing Director of Domaine
Developments Ltd. Prior to that she was Property
Director at Railtrack. She is an expert in enhancing
‘Brownfield’ sites and development of under-utilised
resources. She was Managing Director of John Laing
Property Ventures Ltd and has also advised on many
major regeneration projects. (Age 44) P A

Susan Achmatowicz is a leisure business entrepreneur,
who has developed her own award-winning cycle tourism
business. She has a background in the City of London. She
also acts as adviser, consultant and lecturer on leisure,
cycling and sustainable tourism issues. Her work in the
areas of rail-cycle integration, e-commerce and sustainable
tourism has been hailed as UK best practice. Formerly a
Vice President of the Bankers Trust Company, she holds an
MBA in Marketing and Finance from the University of
Alberta. She also Chairs the Pensions Committee. (Age 48)

Dr Derek Langslow CBE is a member of the
Agriculture and Environmental Biotechnology
Commission, Chairman of the Rail Passenger Committee
for Eastern England, a trustee of the Heritage Lottery
Fund, a non-executive director of Harwich Haven
Authority and is an external consultant to Defra on
Quinquennial Review. He is the former Chief Executive of
English Nature, having set up the organisation following
its demerger from the Nature Conservancy Council. He
also Chairs the Audit Committee. (Age 58) A N

P S

Dr Campbell Christie CBE is the former General
Secretary of the Scottish TUC, a Board Member of
Scottish Enterprise and a Director of South West
Trains Ltd. He is the UK representative on the EU
Economic and Social Committee. He is the Chair of
the BW Scotland Group and represents Scottish
interests on the Board.
(Age 65) P R N S

Janet Lewis-Jones is a member of the Strategic Rail
Authority, a Commissioner for the Postal Services
Commission, Vice President of the British Board of Film
Classification, and a trustee of the Police Foundation,
the Institute of Rural Health, the Baring Foundation,
and the Carnegie UK Trust. She speaks Welsh and
represents Welsh interests on the Board. (Age 53) N

Ian Darling is a chartered surveyor and Director of
Chesterton (Scotland) Property Consultants. He serves
on the Council and Scottish Committee of the RSPB
and has recently served as Master of the Edinburgh
Merchant Company. He is a past Chairman of the
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors in Scotland.
He is a regular user of Scotland’s canals and
represents Scottish interests on the Board.
(Age 58) R S

Adeeba Malik is Deputy Chief Executive of QED UK
(Quest for Economic Development), a national economic
development charity. She is involved in local, regional and
national Committees and Boards covering enterprise, health,
learning and education and community development.
She is a Board Member of Yorkshire Forward, a NonExecutive Director of NCAA (National Clinical Assessment
Authority, Department of Health) and a Member of the
National Ethnic Business Advisory Forum, DTI. She is
also a Director of Northern Ballet. (Age 36) A

George Fleming was Professor of Civil Engineering at
the University of Strathclyde and is Managing Director
of EnviroCentre (an environmental consultancy based at
the University). He is a past President of the Institution
of Civil Engineers, and still chairs their Waste
Management Board. He is also Non-Executive Director
of WRAP (Waste and Resource Action Programme).
(Age 58) A S

Terry Tricker is Chairman of the Burton Hospitals NHS
Trust. He is a former Director of Operations and Board
Member of Severn Trent Water Ltd, and Non-Executive
Director of the Employment Needs Training Agency. He is a
mentor with ‘Jigsaw’, a young people’s mentoring
organisation, part of the National Mentoring network, and has
worked with disadvantaged children in the UK and Romania.
He is a Chartered Chemist and has worked hard to improve
our aqueous environment and has just established his own
leisure company, Derby Caravan Centre Ltd. (Age 59) R

P

DIRECTOR OF BRITISH WATERWAYS PENSION TRUSTEES LTD

N

MEMBER OF THE NOMINATION COMMITTEE

S

A

MEMBER OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

R

MEMBER OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

MEMBER OF THE BRITISH WATERWAYS SCOTLAND GROUP
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

CHIEF EXECUTIVE
Robin Evans, FRICS.
Robin joined British Waterways in 1999 as Commercial Director and became
Chief Executive in December 2002. Prior to that he spent four years as
Palaces’ Director for Historic Royal Palaces and was Chief Executive of
The Landmark Trust for eight years. He is a Director of Euro Waterways Ltd,
De Nieuwe Voorhaven (UK) Ltd, Drifters, Watergrid Limited and ISIS
Waterside Regeneration Ltd. (Age 49)

COMMERCIAL
DIRECTOR
(from March 2003)
James Froomberg, MA.
James joined British
Waterways in March 2003.
From 1983-1999 he was
at KPMG where, as a
partner, he headed the
firm’s management
consultancy to the leisure
industry. He was then
appointed to Wembley plc
as Director of Corporate
Development, before
joining British Waterways.
He is a Director of
Business in the Community.
(Age 47)
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LEGAL DIRECTOR
Nigel Johnson, BSc
(Econ), Solicitor.
From 1987 to 1997 Nigel
was Chief Solicitor to
Cheltenham & Gloucester
plc. He was then appointed
Official Solicitor to the
Church Commissioners
before joining British
Waterways in April 2001.
(Age 48)
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PERSONNEL DIRECTOR
Vincent Moran, BA,
FCIPD.
Vince joined British
Waterways in 1997
following personnel and
general management
careers in the public and
private sectors. (Age 47)

MARKETING AND
COMMUNICATIONS
DIRECTOR
Simon Salem, BA, MBA.
Simon has 20 years’
experience of marketing,
PR, corporate affairs and
fundraising. Before joining
British Waterways he
worked for London
Transport. He has worked
extensively in the leisure
and tourism industry.
He is a Director of
Waterscape and a trustee
of The Waterways Trust.
(Age 45)

TECHNICAL &
ENVIRONMENT
DIRECTOR
(until May 2003)
Bill Schlegel, CEng, FICE.
Bill was an Executive
Director for five years,
having joined British
Waterways in 1986. He
previously worked in civil
and structural engineering
consultancy. (Age 49)

TECHNICAL DIRECTOR
Stewart Sim OBE,
CEng, FICE, MCIWEM.
Stewart was Operations
Director until May 2003
when he became Technical
Director. A civil engineer
by profession, Stewart
has worked for British
Waterways for 29 years
in most parts of the
country and has been
involved in most parts of
the business. (Age 57)

FINANCE DIRECTOR
Mark Smith, FCCA.
A fellow of the Chartered
Association of Certified
Accountants, Mark has
spent much of his
professional career in
retailing, and held senior
finance and business
development positions in
Marks and Spencer plc
before joining British
Waterways in June 2001.
(Age 44)
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

BRITISH WATERWAYS HAS
CONTINUED TO DELIVER ITS
COMMITMENTS THIS YEAR.
AT THE SAME TIME WE HAVE
INVESTED IN THE PEOPLE,
INFRASTRUCTURE AND
SYSTEMS NEEDED TO SECURE
A SUSTAINABLE FUTURE FOR
OUR WATERWAYS.

▼

GEORGE GREENER
CHAIRMAN

KEY ACHIEVEMENTS THIS YEAR
We are proud of what we have achieved this year. Our
commercial success has continued. This year we saw a
rise of 20% in trading income to £81.7 million.
We set up two significant public private partnerships
in 2002. The first of these was ISIS, a property
partnership with AMEC and the Igloo Fund within Morley.
The partnership was launched at the Urban Summit in
Birmingham and we were delighted to welcome Alun
Michael, the Waterways Minister, and John Prescott,
Deputy Prime Minister, to our opening event.
Our public private partnership to move, treat and sell
water was also launched in 2002 under the banner
Watergrid Limited and we are pleased to be working
with our partners, Anglian Water Group, Bristol Water
and Partnerships UK on this promising venture.
We have remained on target to eliminate our backlog
of safety-related maintenance with an investment of
£24.4 million this year bringing the outstanding backlog
down to £15.5 million as planned.
We have completed the basic build and construction
of our three remaining Tranche One projects – the
Rochdale Canal, Millennium Ribble Link and the Kennet
& Avon Canal – and will be carrying out further
improvements to ensure these waterways meet full user

specifications and are sustainable for the future.
Together with the five projects reported on in last year’s
Annual Report, we now have eight projects up and
running and starting to fulfil their long-term objective of
sustainably regenerating the communities they serve.
We expect these projects to create an additional 13,000
long-term jobs and to inject £100 million into local
economies as well as producing quality of life
improvements for local residents.
Finally, but very importantly, we were delighted to
feature in The Sunday Times 100 Best Companies to
Work For, the first time that public sector bodies had
featured in the list. I would like to thank everyone in
British Waterways who expressed their views and
helped to put us on the map in such illustrious company.
INVESTING FOR TOMORROW
This year we allocated an additional £8.9 million for
improvements to customer facilities including interpretation
of historic structures, car parking, improved security,
moorings and new and improved service blocks and
towpath improvements.
We have completed the first phase of our major
investment in improving our efficiency with the
successful ‘go-live’ of the first and largest phase of our
new IT systems using SAP technology. Our partnership
with LogicaCMG will be key to ensuring that our
investment brings real quality and efficiency
improvements this year.
We began a planned investment of over £4 million in
a major promotion of the inland waterways which will
feature a brand new web portal, waterscape.com, to
provide comprehensive information on all inland
waterways. We expect to launch this in the summer of
2003 as part of our strategy to substantially increase
the number of visitors to the inland waterways by 2012
and to develop new ways in which these visitors can
become our customers.
We have begun to develop a range of indicators to
help us run our business in a sustainable way and to
demonstrate the progress we are making. These can be
found on pages 30-31.
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C H A I R M A N ’ S S TAT E M E N T

DELIVERING TODAY AND INVESTING
FOR TOMORROW
British Waterways has continued to deliver its
commitments this year. At the same time we have
invested in the people, infrastructure and systems
needed to secure a sustainable future for our waterways.
The government expects British Waterways to create
a blend of social, economic and environment & heritage
benefits for the nation. That means we are committed to
developing a unique mix of public, private and voluntary
sector skills in order to maximise public benefit from
public assets.
It also means that our strength comes from working in
partnership with others and I am delighted that in this Annual
Report so many partners wanted to comment positively on
their experience of working with British Waterways.
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“British Waterways has found the right mixture of being entrepreneurial and
being an effective steward of an important part of our national heritage.
Something that was once a drain on public resources is becoming a
valuable and valued sustainable asset”
Alun Michael, MP, Waterways Minister
L-R GEORGE GREENER WITH ALUN MICHAEL MP

OUR PARTNERS
British Waterways achieves almost everything through
partnership. Because we have so many partners it would
be difficult to mention them all in the pages of this report.
However, I do want to acknowledge that all our partners
from the private, public and voluntary sectors are crucial
to our success and I would like to thank you all.
In the private sector, we have excellent property
development partners, not only in ISIS and Watergrid
Limited as noted before, but also in many other business
agreements including Peel Holdings for Gloucester
Quays, Miller Developments for Edinburgh Quay and
City Road Basin, Chelsfield for Paddington Basin and
bloc for other London sites.
Our suppliers, too, offer us the mutual advantages of
a relationship based on partnership. I have already
referred to our long-term relationship with LogicaCMG
for IT systems, and another equally fruitful approach to
long-term service delivery has been our omnibus
contracts for engineering services with AWG, Dew,
Gallifords and Nuttalls. These offer real value for money,
service improvements and transfer of knowledge.
We continue to have excellent relationships with the
governments in London, Edinburgh and Cardiff. This
year, as the result of a reallocation of ministerial
responsibilities within Defra, we were pleased to
welcome Alun Michael when he took over from Lord
Whitty as Waterways Minister. Both present and former
Waterways Ministers have proved to be knowledgeable
about the waterways and supportive of our plans to
deliver government policy as stated in Waterways for
Tomorrow. Grant remains an important element of our
funding. Although currently we only have a one year
commitment on future grant from Defra, we anticipate
that we will return to a three year funding commitment
from next year.
In Scotland, Iain Gray, the minister with responsibility
for waterways until May 2003 gave us a boost by
publishing Scotland’s first ever policy document for canals
– Scotland’s Canals – an asset for the future. We also
welcomed the additional grant of £6.7 million which the
Scottish Executive was able to make available on an ‘ad
hoc’ basis for 2002/03. We all recognise that ‘ad hoc’
funding is inefficient and I am looking forward to working
with the new government to resolve this satisfactorily.
Nicol Stephen took over as minister in May 2003 and we
look forward to working with him.

10

BRITISH WATERWAYS ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS

Although waterways are not a devolved matter, Sue
Essex, Environment Minister in Wales until May 2003,
confirmed the importance of the waterways to the Welsh
economy when, in March, she endorsed the launch of the
consultation on our strategy Waterways for Wales. We
look forward to the results of the consultation and to
working closely with the Welsh Assembly and the new
minister, Andrew Davies, in the future.
Our relationship with the Environment Agency
continues to be crucial. The Agency is much more than
just another navigation authority; it is an actual and
potential partner in areas which include the
implementation of the Water Framework Directive, flood
defence, water extraction licensing, pollution prevention
and much more.
The many organisations that have supported our
projects, large and small across the country, are vital to
our success. We have long-term relationships with
bodies such as the Heritage Lottery Fund, New
Opportunities Fund and English Partnerships as well as
local authorities and Regional Development Agencies.
We believe that we work together for the mutual benefit
of our stakeholders. I thank all our funders for their
support this year and for their long-term commitment to
the waterways. We will work hard to make sure your
confidence is repaid.
So much excellent advice, support and often funding
comes to us from the voluntary sector. I would very
much like to acknowledge the important role that this
sector plays in helping British Waterways succeed and
in creating a long-term future for the inland waterways.
Whether help, advice, or constructive criticism comes
from national organisations such as the Association of
Waterway Cruising Clubs, the Inland Waterways
Association, the Royal Yachting Association, The
Waterways Trust, Groundwork, the Fieldfare Trust or
from local organisations including canal societies and
community groups, it is always welcome and useful.
OUR PEOPLE
I have already said how pleased we were that our people
voted us into the Sunday Times 100 Best Companies to
Work For. I continue to be impressed by the
professionalism, hard work and dedication that our
people show. The Board wants to thank everyone who
works for British Waterways for the hard work they have
put into producing yet another good set of achievements

and for their professional approach to our recent
organisation restructure. You are a credit to yourselves
and to public services. I want to continue to develop our
relationships with the trade unions; they have an
important part to play in developing British Waterways.
We will continue to build on the work already done with
the Transport & General Workers Union and UNISON to
introduce proactive occupational health.
Dave Fletcher, our chief executive for the past six
years, retired in December 2002 as planned. I am
particularly pleased that we were able, after tough
competition, to appoint his successor from inside British
Waterways. Robin Evans, commercial director since 1999,
was an outstanding candidate and has already made an
excellent start. I know his vision, inspiration and
professionalism will be of great value to us.
We needed to replace Robin as commercial director, and
we were pleased to be able to recruit James Froomberg, who
joined us in March 2003. James comes from a background in

leisure development and joined us from Wembley plc where
he was director of corporate development.
THE FUTURE
I continue to be convinced that British Waterways’ unique
potential, arising from our ability to balance the
commercial and guardian moral imperatives, remains
important and that we will make a successful and positive
contribution to life in this country in the years ahead.
In working with our partners to care for and enhance
the waterways, we are all doing something worthwhile
which will help to create a better future and should give
us the pride and the courage to succeed.

GEORGE GREENER
CHAIRMAN

C H A I R M A N ’ S S TAT E M E N T

▼ CHILDREN ENJOY AN OUTING TO DOCHGARROCH ON THE CALEDONIAN CANAL
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REVIEW

MY AIM IS TO INCREASE THIS
MOMENTUM, INVEST IN OUR
FUTURE AND MAKE SURE THE
WATERWAYS REVOLUTION
CONTINUES FOR MANY YEARS
TO COME.
I became chief executive in December 2002 after four
years as BW’s commercial director, and I couldn’t have
taken on my new role at a more exciting time. The
chairman was absolutely right when, in last year’s
Annual Report, he described how a ‘waterways
revolution’ was taking place. My aim is to increase this
momentum, invest in our future and make sure the
waterways revolution continues for many years to come.
I want to substantially increase the number of visitors
to the inland waterways in the next decade. I believe we
can do this by vigorously pursuing our unique blend of
commercial ability, creative partnership and clear public
values. This report sets out the progress we are making
in these areas.

▼

ROBIN EVANS
CHIEF EXECUTIVE
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EARNING OUR INCOME
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REVIEW
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TRADING INCOME
Trading income is our important growth area, and the
increase of 20% this year to £81.7 million exceeded our
budgeted figure by £13.3 million. The rise in income this
past year was mainly due to a settlement of income arrears
for the discharge of excess water with Severn Trent Water
and returns realised from the settlement of a dispute over
the Ultramast telecoms venture.
We focus on businesses that enable us to unlock the
full commercial potential of the waterways, taking
advantage of the growing demand for treated water and
waterside property.

TOTAL INCOME

£ MILLIONS

EARNING OUR INCOME
Our commitment to the waterways is for the long-term; we do
not believe you can take any other view of such an important
national asset. Ever since the early canal companies were set
up in the eighteenth century waterway owners have used
their assets to generate income in a variety of ways, from
boat tolls, to water sales and property ventures. Today BW is
no different. We continue to use our assets to generate
income, but we do so in ways that are relevant to the 21st
century and in ways that create wider public benefits.
We earn income through our commercial businesses,
government grant and third party funding and in 2002/03
our total income was £191.6 million. In the past year our
trading income grew by 20% to £81.7 million, our
government grant by 27% to £82.0 million while our third
party funding fell by 35% to £27.9 million.
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“By 2006 ISIS will be recognised as the UK’s
leading waterside developer, both in the quality
and the scale of the developments it undertakes”
John Early, Chairman, AMEC Investment Ltd

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT
The property and land surrounding our inland waterways
are an important part of maintaining an attractive and
vibrant network and our investment property portfolio was
valued at £317 million at 31 March 2003.
Last year we earned £19.4 million from these
properties, an increase of 5% from the previous year.
In July 2002 we set up a joint venture company ISIS to
manage and develop part of our portfolio.
CAPITAL VALUE OF PROPERTY PORTFOLIO
350

WAYLEAVES AND PREMIUMS
As well as the waterways themselves we often own the
adjacent land. We earn considerable income from
agreements with companies who make use of and
continue to route services and facilities alongside and
across our waterways. The waterways are also used for
the discharge of excess water. We have actively pursued
a strategy of ensuring that companies that benefit from
using the waterways or adjacent land pay a fair rate for
access rights. As a result, in the last year, we earned
£26.7 million, an increase of 54% from the previous
year. The majority of this rise is income from surface
water discharges.
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250
30
200
150
20

100
50

02/03

01/02

00/01

99/00

10
98/99

£ MILLIONS

0

20

15

10

5

14

BRITISH WATERWAYS ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS

02/03

01/02

00/01

99/00

98/99

£ MILLIONS

0

02/03

01/02

00/01

99/00

INVESTMENT PROPERTY RENTAL INCOME

98/99

£ MILLIONS

0

Surface water discharges income

8

Electricity & telecommunications
cables and gas pipelines
We have electricity & telecommunications cables and
gas pipelines running across our land and beneath our
towpaths. These routes provide an essential network for
the supply of power in the UK. We are currently
reviewing our agreements with the electricity and gas
companies and have already negotiated a substantial
increase in our income received for allowing them to
use our property for this purpose.
Our telecoms joint venture with the private sector
company Easynet provides fibre optic cables beneath
our towpaths linking major conurbations in Britain.
We also have an agreement with the mobile phone
mast company Ultramast.
CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REVIEW

Surface water discharges
Last year our income grew by £6 million to £7.3 million,
largely because in March 2001 the High Court ruled that
Severn Trent Water should pay British Waterways for the
rights to discharge excess water into our waterways. We
have since received backdated income from Severn Trent
Water and have negotiated fees for the next two
financial years. We will be negotiating future and
backdated fees with other companies that have been,
and will be, using our facilities in a similar way.

Utility agreements income
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“British Waterways’ track record in regeneration and property
development meant that they were the ideal partner for us to
enter into a significant regeneration joint venture”
John Whittaker, Chairman, Peel Holdings
BRITISH WATERWAYS ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS
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“Watergrid is the start of an exciting business
opportunity and is a ground breaking deal for
the government’s Wider Markets Initiative”
James Stewart, Chief Executive, Partnerships UK

WATER SALES
When they were first formed over 200 years ago canal
companies sold water as part of their business, and
have done so ever since. Today we continue to sell
water and in November 2002 we set up Watergrid
which will further increase our activity in this area. In
2002/03 our revenue from water sales fell by 9% to
£3.8 million mainly due to a planned decrease in income
via our contract with Bristol Water and a reorganisation
of our water sales business in preparation for Watergrid.
WATER SALES INCOME

average of 6% with effect from 1 April 2002. Boat licence
prices increased by 1.8% on 1 January 2002. We then
decided to bring increases in line with our financial year.
The increase on 1 April 2003 was 3%.
LEISURE INCOME
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LEISURE
We earn income from our leisure activities. These
include navigation, operating and renting marinas, retail
from visitor centres and other outlets, and angling. In the
last year our income grew by 10% to £21.9 million
mainly due to an increase in retail sales from our newly
opened visitor centres and marinas.
Navigation
Navigation is at the core of what we do. We have over
26,000 boats licensed on our waterways. Our income from
craft licences and moorings in 2002/03 was up 7% to
£14.3 million and represented 8% of our total income.
Although any reasonable payments for navigation services
cannot possibly meet the cost of maintaining the waterway
network, government requires us to promote these services
in a business-like and, where appropriate, market-led
manner. We increased the prices of our moorings by an
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Licences and Moorings for boats
During the year, we also consulted with users about
methods of assessing licence prices in the future. We felt
that the standard Retail Price Index was not the most
appropriate index available and proposed that a composite
index, that more explicitly reflects the maintenance costs
incurred by British Waterways, should be used. We
subsequently developed an index reflecting our costs,
which also included a reduction to take account of
expected improvements in our efficiency. We used this
index as the basis for our increase in licence prices of 3%
in April 2003. We recognise that further refining of the
index is necessary. We will use the refined index as the
basis for further price increases. If we need to change this
mechanism we will consult users first.
In 2002/03 we again reviewed the pricing of our
owned mooring sites against the market. The review
resulted in increases in mooring fees at sites where our
prices were out of line with the market.
During the year we opened two new marinas. In
November 2002 we took over management and ownership
of Apsley Marina, a new 65-berth mooring basin, from
Fairview Homes. The 130-berth Packet Boat Marina in
Uxbridge, Middlesex opened to boats in April 2003.

2002/03
2001/02
PRIVATE PLEASURE BOATS – CANALS & RIVERS
Powered
19,851
19,565
Unpowered
128
118
Total
19,979
19,683
PRIVATE PLEASURE BOATS – RIVERS
Powered
3,552
3,581
Unpowered
313
382
Total
3,865
3,963
Hire craft – canals
1,193
1,269
Hire craft – rivers only
148
156
Other business craft
901
897
Houseboats
340
366
Total long-term licences
26,426
26,334
Mooring permits issued
7,892
7,546
Licensing figures for BW Scotland are shown in the Scotland
Director’s Review, on page 35.

FREIGHT
Canals were originally built for the transportation of
goods and although we will never again reach the
freight carriage levels we saw at the height of the
industrial revolution, we have been putting plans in place
to increase our activity in this area.
We currently earn £0.7 million per annum which
removes 96,000 (25 tonne) lorry loads from our roads.
Although our income is down 7% this year our long-term
strategic objective remains to double the volume of freight
carried on our waterways by 2010. We have prepared a
new freight strategy which focuses on the markets for the
carriage of containers, minerals and waste.
FREIGHT TOLLS AND DUES INCOME

GOVERNMENT GRANT
We receive an annual grant from the UK and Scottish
governments. In 2002/03 the amount of grant accrued
in our accounts was £82 million in total, up 27% from
last year.
The increase in total grant reflects a temporary and
specific programme to invest in water control facilities
and to reduce the backlog of safety-related maintenance.
The overall level of grant received was sufficient to
keep us on track to eliminate our backlog of safetyrelated maintenance by the end of 2004 and to maintain
the waterways to agreed waterway standards. The
increase in grant revenue was welcome. We know that
Defra prefers to commit grant on a three year planned
basis, although currently it can only commit on a one
year horizon. This has an effect on our ability to invest
and spend effectively in the way that most businesses
do. We anticipate that Defra will return to three year
planned horizons from next year. We are also discussing
with Defra ways to enter into longer-term service
agreements to help us overcome this uncertainty.
CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REVIEW

BOAT LICENCES IN ENGLAND & WALES

GOVERNMENT GRANT
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“We are delighted to be part of the Grand Union Canal’s first
freight contract for over 30 years. It will have major environmental
benefits in terms of reducing lorry movements”
David Weeks, Hanson Aggregates
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“The ability of British Waterways and its partners
to use lottery funding has shown what good can
be done to local communities”
Frances Done, CEO, Manchester 2002

THIRD PARTY FUNDING
Our income from third party sources includes
generous funding from many partners including
European bodies, the Heritage Lottery Fund, the
Millennium Commission and Regional Development
Agencies.
We receive funds for enhancements to the existing
waterway network and for the restoration of derelict
canals and building new waterways.
Our income fluctuates considerably in line with
project activity and in 2002/03 was down by 35% to
£27.9 million. This reflects the successful conclusion
during the year of all the engineering work required to
complete the building of our Tranche One restoration
programme which began in 1996.

THIRD PARTY FUNDING

EXPENDITURE
Our total expenditure this past year increased by 13%
to £211.1 million. Our spend on major repairs and
renovations rose by 2% to £83.6 million, which reflects
the successful conclusion of our engineering works to
complete our Tranche One restoration programme and
the ongoing works to eliminate our safety-related
backlog of maintenance.
Non-staff operating costs, which include day-to-day
maintenance expenditure, increased by 33% to £66
million reflecting our commitment to improved waterway
standards. Additional Scottish Executive grant received
during the year of £6.7m accounted for a large
proportion of the increased expenditure on the
waterway infrastructure.
Staff costs increased by 10% to £57.2 million but as
a percentage of turnover remained constant at 30%.

EXPENDITURE
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18

BRITISH WATERWAYS ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS

02/03

01/02

00/01

99/00

98/99

0
£ MILLIONS

02/03

01/02

00/01

99/00

98/99

£ MILLIONS

0

OUR CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

OUR CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
We work hard to ensure that we carry out our activities in
a socially responsible way, and throughout this report there
are many examples of how we have integrated this into
our businesses. We recognise that our responsibilities
extend beyond just the impact our businesses have
directly on society, the economy, the environment and our
heritage. The way we carry out our business, the way we
interact with the community at large, the way we develop
business relationships and the way we treat the people
who work for us are critical to our future success.

The following sections explain our key business
processes and how we undertake them in a socially
responsible manner.
In this past year we analysed our business areas and
the way they interact with the three sustainable
development themes – social, economic and environment
& heritage – to form a measurement framework. For
each theme we use many measures to assess progress.
On pages 30-31 we have lead indicators on which we
will assess our progress in the future.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REVIEW

▼ WORKING WITH THE LOCAL COMMUNITY ON THE BIRMINGHAM & BLACK COUNTRY CANALS
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DELIVERING IN PARTNERSHIP

Property venture ‘ISIS’ with
AMEC Developments & Igloo
Regeneration Fund
In July 2002 we created the property company, ISIS,
along with partners AMEC Developments and Igloo
Regeneration Fund (managed by Morley Fund
Management). ISIS is a major joint venture for property
development and we have sold it options on ten sites
from our property portfolio. ISIS is a public private
partnership that wholly supports our ethos to develop
waterside sites on the premise that they offer social,
economic, environment and business benefits.
Current forecasts predict that ISIS will eventually have a
turnover of around £50 million per annum and will deliver
at least eight million square feet of mixed-use space with
an end value of over £1.4 billion. Initial urban developments
will include 8,000 new homes, including affordable housing,
which will support up to 9,500 new jobs.

Property development with
private sector property
companies

▲

Alongside creating ISIS we have also continued to
develop parts of our property portfolio with other private
sector companies. Building work has already started on
a £60 million development at Edinburgh Quay in
Scotland with Miller Developments, and we are finalising
our agreement with Peel Holdings in the planned
£200 million development of Gloucester Quays.

OUR PUBLIC PRIVATE PROPERTY VENTURE, ISIS, WAS SET UP IN JULY 2002

In London we have set up a joint venture, H20 Urban
Ltd, with bloc and will regenerate a number of small
waterside sites throughout the capital. We are in the
planning stages of a major £100 million development of
City Road Basin in our joint venture with Miller
Developments and have secured planning consent with
Chelsfield on the first phase of our Paddington Basin
business barges scheme. In the past year we have also
made significant investments in our land holdings in
London Docklands.

Water sales venture ‘Watergrid
Limited’ with Anglian Water
Limited, Bristol Water Holdings
& Partnerships UK

CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REVIEW

WE HAVE A SUCCESSFUL TRACK RECORD OF WORKING WITH A
RANGE OF PARTNERS FROM THE PRIVATE, PUBLIC AND VOLUNTARY
SECTORS TO ACHIEVE MUTUAL AIMS AND DELIVER SOCIAL,
ECONOMIC AND ENVIRONMENT & HERITAGE BENEFITS.

In November 2002 we made a significant step forward in
the area of water sales by setting up a public private
partnership to supply industrial, commercial and propertydevelopment customers with sustainable water solutions.
We formed Watergrid Limited in partnership with the
water services and infrastructure management group
Anglian Water Limited, utility provider Bristol Water
Holdings and Partnerships UK. It will include bespoke
water treatment, waste water treatment, recycling
services and environmental consultancy based on
individual customer needs. Watergrid is projected to
invest £135 million over the next ten years, which will
be funded by partners and bank borrowings. It is
expected to generate a turnover in excess of
£50 million per annum within the decade.
The venture will have positive impacts on the
environment as it will recycle used water, treat waste
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water and use surplus water so that abstraction from
natural rivers and streams can be reduced.

Restoration with the voluntary
sector, funding bodies, local
authorities and RDAs
Towards the end of the 1990s we secured millions in
third party funding which enabled us to embark on a
programme of ambitious restoration and regeneration
projects. This first phase, known as Tranche One, was
completed in 2002/03 and is already boosting many
local economies. We estimate that the total value of
regeneration brought about through waterway
development has so far reached £2 billion.
Many of these restoration projects have been
made possible because volunteers spent decades
campaigning and working to get the schemes off the
ground. Working in partnership with volunteers has

▼ KEITH PAYLOR, SENIOR PROJECT ENGINEER, WORKING ON THE RESTORATION
OF THE ROCHDALE CANAL, WHICH WAS COMPLETED IN 2002
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enabled us to deliver projects. We are also grateful to
the many funding bodies without whom we would not
have been able to finance the work, the local
communities whose support was essential and the
thousands of people who worked night and day to help
make these plans become reality. As a result the nation
now has 220 miles of newly restored waterways, one
restored boat lift and one new boat lift. The Huddersfield
Narrow Canal opened in 2001, whilst the Rochdale,
Chesterfield and Kennet & Avon canals, the Millennium
Link and the Millennium Ribble Link, Anderton Boat Lift
and The Falkirk Wheel all opened in 2002.
We are now working with local communities to
realise the full potential of the newly restored
waterways and will be carrying out further improvements
to ensure these waterways meet full user specifications
and are sustainable for the future. With the Tranche One
basic physical build complete, our plans for our second
phase of restoration projects, Tranche Two, are
underway. More details can be found in Our Plan for the
Future 2003-2007.

Regeneration with local
authorities, RDAs, funding
bodies and the private sector
We are constantly looking to create new partnerships to
regenerate waterside locations. In the past year we
worked with partners to improve the Ashton Canal when
the Commonwealth Games came to Manchester in July
2002. The canal was identified as a key pedestrian link
to the Stadium and we invested in improvements to the
waterway environment and towpath by providing spaces
and seating for thousands of pedestrians and boaters to
meet and relax whilst visiting the games. Further south,
at Northampton on the Grand Union Canal, over 200
new homes, a hotel and a lockside pub are being built
alongside canal access improvements as part of the
£25 million regeneration of a 20-acre brownfield site.
In the north west our planned £35 million development
of an 81/2 acre site at Tower Wharf in Chester will feature
an attractive mix of housing, offices and waterside
restaurants. North Staffordshire’s canals are also set to
be improved under a £5 million environmental
regeneration initiative with St Modwen which aims to
transform the canals around Stoke on Trent.
In London work is continuing on one of Europe’s largest
regeneration schemes – Paddington Basin. The scheme,
which started in 2001, is set for completion in 2005/06
and the 2 million square foot mixed-use development is

focussed around the waterspace of the Basin. We are also
working with Miller Developments on a mixed-use
development in City Road Basin, near King’s Cross, and
with Bellway Homes Ltd on the next phase of the
Limehouse Basin development which will include a mix of
houses, shops, hotels, moorings and other visitor facilities.

New business processes and
systems with LogicaCMG

CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REVIEW

▲ INSIDE THE FALKIRK WHEEL VISITOR CENTRE

We have been assessing and analysing our business
methods, and this year have been working hard to
develop and implement new and better systems and
processes. Our people have been working alongside our
partners LogicaCMG to implement the market leader in
business systems, SAP. Launched in April 2003, SAP
has replaced our existing asset management, finance,
craft licensing, personnel & payroll, procurement and
property systems. SAP will ensure our data is up-todate, integrated and online. This investment in our ‘back
office’ will enable our people to work more efficiently,
and spend more time with customers. We have also
invested in a major training programme to support this
change and between January and April 2003 we trained
over 1000 people.
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WOW: a partnership with IWA
& TWT – involving and inspiring
the next generation

BACKLOG OF SAFETY-RELATED MAINTENANCE &
STATUTORY ARREARS
200

150

Eliminating maintenance arrears
with four main contractors
Many years of under investment in the waterways
resulted in a backlog of maintenance works, which in
1997 was valued at £260 million. In recent years
government has helped to tackle this serious underfunding by increasing our annual grant by £8 million from
1999-2000 onwards, and by a further £9 million from
2002-03 onwards. The cost to eliminate the remaining
backlog of maintenance at March 2003 was valued at
£187 million.
We are on target to eliminate the safety-related part
of the maintenance backlog by December 2004. This
remarkable turnaround has been made possible by our
dedicated people working alongside our main omnibus
contractors AWG, Dew, Gallifords and Nuttalls and
numerous engineering consultants.
We have set ourselves the challenge of eliminating
the remaining bulk of maintenance arrears by December
2012, and are on track to do this provided our
government grant continues at its current real value and
our business ventures yield their expected income.
BRITISH WATERWAYS ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS
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The Boat Safety Scheme – with
the Environment Agency &
Association of Inland Navigation
Authorities
The Boat Safety Scheme (BSS), the joint programme
with the Environment Agency to prevent fire, explosion
and pollution, was adopted by the fourth largest AINA
member this year. The Middle Level Commissioners is
the 13th partner to adopt the Scheme. Measures have
been taken to improve BSS examination consistency.
New examination paperwork was introduced and most
recently a team of examiner quality assessors have
been contracted, trained and then deployed.
The scheme also stepped up its communications
activities this year with the assistance of a new
communications manager. BSS staff and authorised
examiners attended four major shows, and leaflets to
address the prime dangers of fire and carbon monoxide
poisoning were produced. The leaflets, put together in
partnership with other relevant organisations such as
the British Marine Federation, have been distributed to
over 60,000 boat owners on Britain’s inland waters.

THE IWA NATIONAL WATERWAYS FESTIVAL HELD IN HUDDERSFIELD IN
AUGUST 2002 FEATURED ‘WOW’ ACTIVITIES FOR CHILDREN

▲
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Set up in partnership with the Inland Waterways
Association and The Waterways Trust, WOW (Wild Over
Waterways) has been working with children, schools and
parents all over the country. Constructive engagement with
children and young people is important because the longterm future of the waterways depends on the attitudes of
future generations. Building positive relationships with
children and young people is also an effective route to
improving safety awareness and reducing vandalism.
Under the WOW banner we encourage younger people to
discover and make use of waterways through events, a
website and school resources.
Over 30 teaching resources were produced last year
linked to the national curricula of England, Scotland and
Wales. WOW attended two major waterway festivals and
has been successful in obtaining a grant from the
Heritage Lottery Fund to run a number of events over the
next two years. The WOW website, www.wow4water.net,
was launched in October 2002 and currently attracts
over 4,500 hits per month.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REVIEW
BRITISH WATERWAYS ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS
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DELIVERING PUBLIC BENEFIT

IT IS NOW WIDELY RECOGNISED THAT INLAND WATERWAYS ARE
PUBLIC ASSETS THAT DELIVER TANGIBLE PUBLIC BENEFITS TO
SOCIETY. WATERWAYS PROVIDE A VARIED RECREATIONAL
RESOURCE FOR PEOPLE FROM ALL BACKGROUNDS.

VISITOR SURVEYS
We carry out regular surveys in order to understand and
monitor our visitors’ enjoyment levels and needs. During
2002 we completed a national towpath survey which
told us that 93% of visitors were satisfied or very
satisfied with the overall enjoyment of their trip and that
88% were satisfied or very satisfied with the overall
upkeep of the waterways. These results are good, but
we will endeavour to improve on them where we can.
IMPROVING VISITOR DESTINATIONS
In the last year we have identified 20 sites that have
great potential for development as visitor destinations,
thus increasing visitor numbers and generating new
income streams. We want to enhance the visitor
experience at our most important sites by providing
better facilities and improved information. Our recently
opened visitor centres at Standedge Tunnel, The Falkirk
Wheel and Anderton Boat Lift have proved to be very
successful in attracting large numbers of visitors.

VISITOR CENTRE FIGURES 2002/03
Anderton Boat Lift & Operations Centre
100,000 site visitors, 775 private boats through the Lift,
16,924 trip boat passengers through the Lift
Standedge Tunnel & Visitor Centre
28,356 paying visitors, 561 private boat passages through the Tunnel,
22,687 trip boat passengers through the Tunnel
The Falkirk Wheel & Visitor Centre
400,000 visitors, 326 private boats through The Wheel,
2,580 trip boat passages through The Wheel

ONLINE BUSINESS – WATERSCAPE.COM
Our drive to increase visitor numbers has prompted us
to look at new methods and channels to promote
waterways. We have set up a subsidiary company
Waterscape.com to promote all inland waterways under
one banner. Waterscape.com will begin as an online
vehicle and the website will offer a wide range of
waterway-related information, goods and services.
The site was launched in June 2003 and will focus
on attracting new visitors to the waterways.
INVESTING IN CUSTOMER FACILITIES
We invest heavily in providing and improving facilities for
our customers and last year, through our commercial
ventures, managed to secure an additional £8.9 million
to invest in customer facilities, as listed below.
CUSTOMER FACILITY IMPROVEMENTS FROM
THE ADDITIONAL £8.9 MILLION
Number

£M

Number of new or improved service
(sanitary) stations

40

3.4

Towpath improvement projects

23

1.3

Car parks

7

0.2

Interpretation projects

12

0.5

Visitor moorings and navigation facilities

36

1.5

Improved security (number of sites)

6

0.3

Other small visitor improvement projects

41

1.7

TOTAL

▲

CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REVIEW

PROVIDING RECREATIONAL SPACE
Imaginative waterway projects regenerate communities
by delivering unique combinations of social, economic
and environment & heritage benefits – a fact
recognised by every organisation providing regeneration
funds in the UK today. We have delivered our Tranche
One restoration projects (as detailed on page 22) and
will continue to restore and rebuild waterways to help
deliver benefits to local communities where appropriate.
It is not only restored waterways that add value to
communities; the whole of the 200-year old network is
a valued leisure resource. We plan to increase the
number of visitors to our waterways and improve
satisfaction and enjoyment levels.

8.9

STOKE BRUERNE ON THE GRAND UNION CANAL
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“The regeneration of the Rochdale Canal was one of the Agency’s
early top priorities. The £10.8 million of funding which the Agency
has provided through English Partnerships for this project has
helped to reclaim 42 hectares of derelict land as well as reclaiming
the canal itself” Mike Shields, Chief Executive, Northwest Development Agency

delighted to learn that it had won the Plain English Award
‘Document of the Year’ and we are now in the process of
making a video to complement it. Our WOW initiative for
young people includes a waterside safety pack that
encourages older children to assess risks themselves
when visiting waterways. We work alongside Ragdoll
Productions, the producers of ‘Rosie and Jim’, to design
and distribute safety information to the under sevens. All
these safety materials are also published on our website.

Safety Management for our people
Our people work in a wide variety of environments on
numerous different tasks. Each and every activity has its
own hazards and we put a high priority on planning and
training for safe working practices and places.
We have a dedicated safety team that provides
corporate policy on these issues. We also keep under
constant review our safety management processes and
procedures, and do this with representatives from a wide
range of activities within the business.
We set ourselves the target of reducing reportable
accidents and incidents by 20% per annum, but in 2002/03
these increased from 25 to 49. This performance was
unacceptable and we have immediately put in place changes
that will place greater emphasis on safe working. Of
particular importance is the rapid roll out of behavioural
safety programmes designed to change attitude and culture
within the business units and embed safe working behaviour.
Of the many safety courses we run, the Competency
Assessment and Training Scheme (CAATS) is the most
important. This scheme has been designed to ensure that
individuals have attained defined levels of safety
competency in the use of work equipment. Almost 700
people have attended courses over the last year.

Waterway Maintenance
We want to make sure that we are never again in a position
where we have a huge backlog of maintenance work. We
have an asset management programme in place and invest
heavily in maintenance works each year. In 2002/03 we
invested £59.3 million on operating and maintaining our
network and £13.3 million on renewals, refurbishment and
other projects. Our works this year included 219 new lock
gates, 341 new lock paddles, 56 miles of canals dredged,
4,294 miles of vegetation cut from towpaths, 689 miles of
hedges laid or cut, 112 bridges repaired and 106 miles of
towpath improvements. Our waterway standards improved
as detailed below.
In the past year we also spent £24.4 million on
reducing our backlog of safety-related maintenance and
£17.6 million towards eliminating our maintenance arrears
(see graph on page 24).

Customer Safety
Working with other national organisations with extensive
customer safety responsibilities, we have developed and
adapted customer risk management policies and practices
which help us to achieve customer safety whilst
maintaining access and amenity value. We produce
literature and videos that help provide our customers with
safety guidance and information. The Boater’s Handbook,
developed in partnership with the Environment Agency
and the British Marine Federation, offers clear and simple
advice on safe boating. In the past year it was sent out to
over 40,000 boaters. In December 2002 we were
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WATERWAY STANDARDS
Navigation Standard

2001/02
%
3
14
16
49
9
8
1
100

2002/03
%
4
14
17
49
9
6
1
100

2007/08
%
4
14
21
48
8
4
1
100

Channel Availability
C1
C2
C3
Total

38
44
18
100

45
42
13
100

59
36
5
100

Environs Standard
E1
E2
E3
E4
Total

2
27
64
7
100

2
34
57
7
100

4
40
49
7
100

Towpath Standard
T1
T2
T3
T4
T5
Total

5
26
51
4
14
100

5
26
51
4
14
100

9
37
39
2
13
100

N1
N2
N3
N4
N5
N6
N7
Total

LOCK REFURBISHMENT AND LOCK GATE REPLACEMENT
ON THE NEW JUNCTION CANAL, SOUTH YORKSHIRE

▲
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MAINTAINING SAFE AND SECURE
CANALS AND RIVERS
Safety is our top priority: the public needs a waterway
network that is safe and secure. Our ability to earn
commercial income in addition to our government grant
enables us to maintain the network safely. We have
procedures and policies in place to guide us in this area.
Safety programmes and performance are reported to the
board throughout the year.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REVIEW
BRITISH WATERWAYS ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS
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▲ FEEDING SWANS ON THE CRINAN CANAL

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

BUSINESS AREAS

30

SOCIAL

PROPERTY

Affordable housing units created

RESTORATION AND
REGENERATION

Miles of newly accessible waterway
corridor

LEISURE

Visitor numbers and visitor
satisfaction levels

CORE WATERWAY
(Wayleaves & Premiums)

Improved appreciation through
changed attitudes

VENTURES
(ISIS, Watergrid, Waterscape)

Hits on the Waterscape website
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“Canals are a very important part of Britain’s heritage – they’re very
popular with all kinds of people. They’re a way of dealing with
historic structures, with the natural environment – and of enhancing
the lives of many thousands of people and communities”
Liz Forgan, Chair, Heritage Lottery Fund

SOCIAL
Being responsive to local people and local circumstances
is a crucial value for us. We are involved in a huge range
of projects with many partners around the country.
During 2002/03 we held a series of well attended
internal workshops on social inclusion to share best
practice and decide future strategy.

ECONOMIC

We believe we need to target resources effectively to
create change in these areas. From 2003/04 onwards
we will be focusing our attention on:
Access for All
Community Relations
Education
ENVIRONMENT & HERITAGE
We use a variety of methods to help deliver consistent
environment and heritage benefits, including Biodiversity
Action Plans, our Environmental Code of Practice and
Heritage Action Plans.
Focused campaigns
We have decided to select one or two campaigns each
year to make a real difference. Consequently from
2003/04 we will focus our efforts on two campaigns
that will benefit the environment and people’s quality
of life:
A reduction in dog fouling on towpaths
A reduction in energy consumption by
British Waterways

ENVIRONMENT & HERITAGE

investment in the waterways is a

Reducing number of our buildings on the
English Heritage and Local Authority ‘at risk’
register

proper measure of economic benefit,

Miles of historic waterways restored

The income we generate for re-

CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REVIEW

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT
In developing our businesses and our network we are
very conscious of the contribution they can make to our
wider social, heritage and environmental objectives both directly and through the earned income they
generate.
In 2002/03 we analysed our business areas and the
way in which they interact with the three sustainable
development themes. For each theme we use many
measures to continually assess our progress and the
table below identifies the lead indicators that we will
publish. We may find lead indicators that better measure
our progress with sustainable development in the future,
in which case we will substitute them.

as all the income we earn is spent on
the waterways. Our business plans

Number of interpretation schemes
completed

are a good indicator of our
achievements in this area.

Reduced CO2 emissions from employee
vehicles by reducing business mileage

These can be found in Our Plan for
the Future 2003-07 pages 15-23.

% of ISIS projects meeting sustainable
development criteria
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“Working on canals, according to British Waterways employees,
is a way of life that should be prescribed on the NHS”
The Sunday Times 100 Best Companies to Work For

PEOPLE
Quality people enable us to be successful and it is a
credit to our people that in March 2003 we secured a
place on The Sunday Times 100 Best Companies to
Work For. This survey is independently adjudicated and
we are delighted to be one of only two public sector
bodies to achieve listing.
Employee surveys have shown that our people
continue to be in the top quartile of companies for their
satisfaction and motivation levels. Absenteeism has
dropped from nine and half days per employee in
2001/02 to eight in 2002/03 and we anticipate that
our improved occupational health programme will help
reduce this figure further in the future. We are
committed to investing in training for our people and our
programme of training days increased from four to five
days per employee in 2002/03. We have continued to
work closely with UNISON and the Transport & General
Workers Union in employee relations matters.
In May 2003 we announced a significant change in
our organisation’s structure. The current six regions and
25 waterways are in the process of being replaced by
ten new Waterway Units. The structure will be much
simpler than the previous one, and each Unit will be
supported by a team with the resources and authority to
deliver the services our customers and visitors require.
The roles and responsibilities of the executive directors
have not greatly changed, although the existing posts of
operations director and technical & environment director
have been merged into a new technical director post.
The new structure will create greater consistency, as
well as enabling our people to be more effective by
ensuring the right resources are available when and
where they are needed most.

THE FUTURE
In this past year we have invested heavily for the future.
Our ambition is that by 2012 we will have created an
expanded, vibrant, largely self-sufficient waterway
network used by a significantly larger number of people
than today. Our network is, once again, being regarded
as one of the nation’s most important and valued assets.
Our investments this year, and in years to come, will
also enable us to become the organisation we want to be
in the future – an organisation that epitomises a new
modern approach to the presentation of the historic
waterway network and the delivery of excellent public
services.

ROBIN EVANS
CHIEF EXECUTIVE
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▲

BW EMPLOYEES:
SUZANNE SHAKOUR, GARETH MORGAN,
VICTORIA SHOOTER AND EV GOODEN

CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REVIEW
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SCOTLAND DIRECTOR’S REVIEW

▲

WE HAVE HAD ANOTHER VERY BUSY
AND EXCITING YEAR IN SCOTLAND.
WE HAVE A GROWING CUSTOMER
BASE, PARTICULARLY WITH THE REOPENING OF THE LOWLAND CANALS
AND OUR SHOWCASE ATTRACTION,
THE FALKIRK WHEEL.

JIM STIRLING
DIRECTOR SCOTLAND
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TRADING INCOME
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The opening of The Falkirk Wheel and Visitor Centre
meant that income from visitor centres went up from
£42,000 in 2001/02 to £1.1m in 2002/03.
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Licensing
During the year we completed a review of our licensing
system and charges for boats. In April 2003, a new
system came into use in which licence fees have been
separated from mooring charges for the first time in
Scotland. Our aim is to encourage boat traffic, improve
transparency in pricing and to create an incentive for
others to invest in the provision of new moorings.

SCOTLAN D D I R ECTOR’S R EVI EW
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£ MILLIONS

EARNING OUR INCOME
Our income is derived from grant, commercial businesses
and third party funding. In the past year our total grant from
the Scottish Executive grew by 61% through a series of
additional ‘ad hoc’ allocations. Our trading income has risen
by 68% whereas our income from restoration and
regeneration funds has fallen by 88%, as expected. This
reduction in third party funding, which accounted for over
half our total income last year, has this year led to a 21%
decrease in total income. Grant now accounts for 74% of
our income, with a remaining 18% coming from trading
activities and with the physical build of the Millennium Link
restoration now complete, only 8% of our income was from
restoration and regeneration funding.

Trading income
Trading income has increased by 68%, from £1.8m in
2001/02 to £3m in 2002/03, mainly due to the
opening of The Falkirk Wheel and Visitor Centre. Other
income includes cost recovery from third parties for
British Waterways’ people’s time.

99/00

We also have an increased presence in the property
development field. We have continued to press ahead
with both the physical development of our canals and
with improving their contribution to Scotland’s society,
economy, environment and heritage.

£ MILLIONS

1.3

Boats Licences in Scotland

3

Caledonian Canal
Lowland Canals

13.8

Crinan Canal*

Under
3 Mths

Under
3 Mths

Over
Over
3 Mths 3 Mths

Total

(02/03)

(01/02)

(02/03)

(01/02)

(02/03) 01/02

1067

1056

207

200

1274 1256

159

111

164

81

1261

1220

62

72

323

Total

192

1323 1292

*There were 754 commercial long-term user lockings & lay up days for
the Crinan Canal.
TRADING INCOME

GOVERNMENT GRANT*

THIRD PARTY FUNDING

* From 1 April 2001 separate grant is received from the Scottish Executive.

*There were 72 commercial freight ship visits to the Crinan Canal.
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“British Waterways has a crucial role to play and we are
totally committed to working in close co-operation with it
and all its partner organisations to deliver the right result”
Nicol Stephen, Minister for Transport, Scotland

Expenditure
Our expenditure costs have fallen to £20.1 million
from £25 million in 2001/02 and £44.8 million in
2000/01, which corresponds with a sharp reduction in
restoration work.
EXPENDITURE
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Scottish Executive Grant
We received a £13.8 million grant from the Scottish
Executive this year, an increase of 61% from last year.
We face the future with optimism, but also with some
concern. We are grateful for the increased funding
pledged over each of the next three years – £8.4m in
2003/04; £8.9m in 2004/05 and in 2005/06. At that
level, however, the funding is insufficient to meet the
aspirations of the policy paper, Scotland’s Canals –
an asset for the future. It is also insufficient to meet the
legitimate demands of our customers for a secure
infrastructure and an increasing level of service.
We are working hard with the Scottish Executive to
solve the funding problem. In the financial year to
31 March 2003 we welcomed the additional grant of
£6.7 million above the baseline figure of £7.1 million. Of
the total £13.8 million grant, £1.1 million has been
allocated in our accounts to capital projects. This
additional support has allowed us to carry out a number
of key programmes and is very welcome. We have put
this funding to good use, but the ad hoc nature of its
availability makes business planning very difficult.
Third Party Funding
Our third party funding income for restoration and
regeneration fell by 88% as expected to £1.3 million this
year. This is because the physical builds of the Forth & Clyde
and Union canals and The Falkirk Wheel are now complete,
and therefore large funds for restoration are now spent.
THIRD PARTY FUNDING
35
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THE CALEDONIAN CANAL

▲
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98/99

£ MILLIONS

0
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“We must make sure we get quality on the canal, whatever we do
it’s got to be quality. We’ve got to attract visitors to the canal and
get them coming back many times”
Ronnie Rusack, The Seagull Trust and Edinburgh Canal Centre

SCOTLAND’S CANALS – A SHARED VISION
In October 2002, The Scottish Executive launched its first
policy paper on canals entitled, Scotland’s Canals – an
asset for the future. This progressive document sets out a
clear agenda and makes an ongoing commitment to our
canal network.
Integration and partnership are key themes of the
policy. The Scottish Executive also outlines how it expects
public bodies to work with British Waterways to maximise
public benefits from canals. There are key chapters on
voluntary, community and private sector involvement.
We welcome this policy paper, particularly as it
confirms the view we have long held about the wide
reaching value of the waterways. We cannot deliver this
value on our own and the publication of the paper should
be seen by all our current partners, whether they be in the
private, public or voluntary sectors, as a ringing
endorsement for their hard work and support.
DELIVERING IN PARTNERSHIP,
DELIVERING PUBLIC BENEFIT
We have been working with a wide range of partners to
deliver social, economic, environment and heritage
benefits in Scotland.
Further developing the Forth & Clyde Canal –
regeneration and development schemes, water sales,
new moorings and a marina
The regeneration of the Forth & Clyde Canal is continuing
with an extensive programme of development along its
length. In West Dunbartonshire, at the western terminus at
Bowling, new moorings and boat facilities will create an
attractive day visitor destination. East Dunbartonshire
Council and Scottish Enterprise Dunbartonshire have been
instrumental in improving the canal environs in Kirkintilloch
which has proudly claimed the title ‘Canal Capital of
Scotland’. Plans are in place for a new modern basin with
visitor and residential moorings, adjacent to the new
Learning Centre at Southbank.
In Glasgow our public private partnership, ISIS, is
working with Glasgow City Council on Glasgow City Wharf,
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a 10-15 year development project. The project is aimed at
using the Forth & Clyde Canal, including the Glasgow
Branch, as a central link in the regeneration of an
extensive corridor in the Glasgow North area.
We also have plans for a 50-berth marina at
Auchinstarry in North Lanarkshire and we have lodged
plans for the redevelopment of the redundant Rosebank
Distillery in Falkirk.
The Union Canal – redevelopment of Edinburgh Quay,
new moorings and customer facilities and the
introduction of hireboat cruisers
Scotland’s capital is benefiting from a revitalised Union
Canal with the innovative Edinburgh Quay development at
the eastern terminus of the canal. In February this year the
first 15-year lease, for pub restaurant space, was signed.
We have also invested in improved customer facilities.
We are determined to see an increase in waterborne
activity on the Lowland Canals and have invested in brand
new steel hulled cruiser style craft which we will be
offering for hire or sale alongside the recently introduced
Black Prince narrowboats.
The Falkirk Wheel visitor destination
The appeal of the world’s first rotating boatlift has
exceeded all expectations, attracting some 400,000
visitors in its first season, and we are responding with
further investment in amenities. We will be using the
Wheel as a base for hire boats and boats for sale as well
as for staging general events and boat shows.
We have been able to enhance and improve visitor
facilities at the Wheel. We have extended and improved
the visitor centre, provided hard surfacing to the car parks
and to more of the on site footpaths. We have also
improved on site security including the provision of more
lighting and CCTV.
The Caledonian Canal – canal development and
hydro-electricity scheme
At Muirtown Basin, a framework for a mixed land and
water development is being produced in partnership with

The Crinan Canal – green transportation
The Crinan Canal continues to make a valuable
contribution to green transport and we are working with
Timberlink to develop freight capacity at Ardrishaig Pier.
The increased levels of use both on land and water have
required environmental and safety improvements at the
Pier. We have worked with Clydeport, Argyll & Bute
Council, Argyll and Isles Enterprise and local operators to
complete a Port Marine Safety Code Plan and to construct
a new dedicated access road for timber shipments.
With the aim of using the canal’s freight potential to the
full, we have conducted a trial of exporting salmon smolt
and are investigating the possibility of transporting general
waste to a local landfill site.

THE FUTURE
Scotland’s canals are seeing a renaissance and we were
delighted to learn that The Falkirk Wheel has rapidly
established itself as one of the most popular paid for
tourist attractions in Scotland. We will continue to deliver
social, economic and environment & heritage benefits to
the people of Scotland through our canals now, and for
many years to come.
However, to ensure the investment needed, we have to
prove we are funded to maintain the canals for the future.
That is why our discussions with the Scottish Executive
about grant are crucial.

JIM STIRLING
DIRECTOR SCOTLAND
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the Highland Council and Inverness and Nairn Enterprise.
At Banavie we have agreed to invest in a hydroelectricity scheme which would provide the national grid
with enough power to light 6,000 60w light bulbs for a
year (3m KWh), but are awaiting planning consent.

Safe and secure canals
Due mainly to additional funding by the Scottish Executive
we were able to bring forward priority dredging of the
Union Canal and significantly extended a programme of
leak repairs. On the Crinan Canal we have significantly
enhanced our maintenance programe through major work
to Bellanoch Embankment, to the western locks and
through extensive stone pitching repairs. We have also
worked with Argyll and Bute Council to safeguard and
improve the public road to Crinan, by providing a
substantial contribution.
We have been able to bring forward from next winter
the purchase of new lock gates for the Muirtown Flight in
Inverness. We have also constructed a new overflow weir
at Corpach in readiness for our planned hydro-electricity
scheme and have been able to fund extensive bank
protection work between Banavie and Loy.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW, SCOTLAND

The BW Scotland loss of £3.6m is broadly in line with
the previous year and brings the cumulative loss over
three years to £8.4m.
This amount represents the commitment of the BW
Group to the long term potential of the waterways in
Scotland.
We are currently in discussion with the Scottish
Executive to increase the underlying grant to a level that
reflects the full cost of operating Scotland’s Waterways.
Our joint objective is to achieve sustainable operating
funding and to secure the investment needed to deliver
the waterways full potential as outlined in the recent
Scottish Executive policy paper Scotland’s Canals – an
asset for the future.

During the year we invested an additional £1.4
million in Edinburgh Quay Ltd, an associate company set
up to develop property in Edinburgh. Interest receivable
on loans made to Edinburgh Quay Ltd amounted to
£0.2 million.
The value of fixed assets increased by £2.3 million to
£12.6 million, including £1.9 million ongoing investment
in the Falkirk Visitor Centre, situated alongside The
Falkirk Wheel and £0.3 million in visitor moorings.
Further commercial investments in Scotland are planned
for the forthcoming year to generate additional income
for further reinvestment in customer services.

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT – SCOTLAND
year to 31 March 2003
2002/03
Direct income

2001/02

£000

£000

4,331

12,823

Scottish Executive grant

12,637

8,600

Total revenue

16,968

21,423

Major repairs and renovations

(6,165)

(16,981)

Other operating charges

(9,814)

(4,792)

Staff costs

(4,368)

(3,810)

(409)

(258)

Depreciation
Own work capitalised or charged to major works
Total expenditure
Operating loss
Profit on sale of investment properties
Interest receivable
Loss for the financial year
Transfer of profits on sale of properties to realised capital reserve
Loss transferred from reserves

-

416

(20,756)

(25,425)

(3,788)

(4,002)

321

61

146
(3,321)

240
(3,701)

(321)

(61)

(3,642)

(3,762)

NOTE: SIGNIFICANT MOVEMENTS IN DIRECT INCOME, SCOTTISH EXECUTIVE GRANT AND EXPENDITURE ON MAJOR REPAIRS AND RENOVATIONS ARE
EXPLAINED IN DETAIL ON PAGES 34 TO 38.
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GRANT RECEIVABLE FROM SCOTTISH EXECUTIVE
2002/03

2001/02

£000

£000

9,459

8,600

Grant receivable from Scottish Executive
Grant received in year
Accrued grant at 1 April
Accrued grant at 31 March

-

-

4,351

-

13,810

8,600

(1,173)

Allocated to deferred capital grant
Deferred capital grant released to profit and loss account
Total revenue grant accrued during the year

-

-

-

12,637

8,600

2002/03

2001/02

£000

£000

4,310

3,139

a) Tangible fixed assets (net book value)
Freehold land, building and structures – operational
Freehold land, building and structures – investment

7,785

7,428

Craft plant and equipment

2,701

2,024

14,796

12,591

1

1

Balance at 1 April

1,339

1,339

Additions

1,356

-

Balance at 31 March

2,695

1,339

Net book amount at 31 March

2,696

1,340

Issued share

Equity interest

capital

held

b) Investments
Shares at cost:
Balance at 31 March
Loan to Edinburgh Quay Ltd

Edinburgh Quay Limited

£

%

100
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ANALYSIS OF FIXED ASSETS

Edinburgh Quay Ltd’s principal activity is property development in Edinburgh.
British Waterways’ investment is shown in the balance sheet at cost less provisions for impairment.
The aggregate amount of capital and reserves and the profit and loss for the year was as follows:
Profit/(loss)

Edinburgh Quay Limited (31 December 2002)

Capital &

for the

Reserves

Year

£000

£000

251

838
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FINANCE DIRECTOR’S REVIEW

▲

PROFITS BROUGHT FORWARD
AND A 20% GROWTH IN OTHER
COMMERCIAL INCOME DURING
THE YEAR MEAN THAT WE ARE
WELL ON OUR WAY TO ACHIEVING
OUR PUBLISHED TARGETS FOR
ELIMINATING ARREARS OF
MAINTENANCE, PROVIDING
INCREASED CUSTOMER FACILITIES
AND IMPROVING CHANNEL
DIMENSIONS.

MARK SMITH
FINANCE DIRECTOR

Group
2002/03
191.6
(211.1)
(19.5)
1.1
3.8
–
–
(14.6)
4.4
(10.2)
(8.8)
(19.0)

BW
2001/02
175.6
(185.6)
(10.0)
–
2.1
45.9
(1.5)
36.5
(2.7)
33.8
(5.9)
27.9

WITHIN THE OVERALL GROUP LOSS OF £19.0 MILLION, LOSSES OF £19.7 MILLION WERE REPORTED IN THE BRITISH WATERWAYS BOARD ACCOUNTS

RESULTS FOR THE YEAR
This year BW has prepared consolidated accounts for
the first time due to the significant nature of two recently
formed joint ventures, ISIS Waterside Regeneration and
Watergrid Ltd along with the acquisition of Blackwall
Estates Ltd in February 2003. Further details of the
composition of the BW Group can be found in Note 9 to
the Accounts on page 82.
Last year BW reported a £27.9 million profit which
reflected the significant one off gain from property
interests in London Docklands. This one-off property
profit was accounted in full in 2001/02. The investment
of the funds arising will take place in subsequent
periods. The proportion of that re-investment made in
2002/03 has resulted in the loss in the current year
and there is also a planned loss in 2003/04 as the
related investment expenditure from the proceeds
occurs. Our breakeven target for transfers to P&L
reserves over the medium term is not affected.
Together with an overall 20% growth in other
commercial income streams, we are well on our way to
achieving our plans to re-invest these gains within the
business, helping us to meet our published targets for
eliminating arrears of maintenance, providing increased
customer facilities and improving channel dimensions.
Our income from third party funding agencies for

enhancements to the existing waterway network and the
restoration of derelict waterways is planned to fluctuate
considerably in line with project activity and in 2002/3
was down by the expected 35% to £27.8 million. This
reflects the successful conclusion during the year of all
the engineering work required to complete our Tranche
One restoration programme.
We are now at a point in the restoration cycle where
lead times are needed to secure funding and consents
for the next programme, which we expect to take
around seven years to complete. More details are given
in our stakeholder publication Our Plan For The Future
2003-2007.
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Financial Highlights
£ millions
Total revenue
Total expenditure
Operating loss
Share of operating profits and losses of associates and joint ventures
Profit on sale of investment properties
Profit on sale of other property rights
Net interest payable
(Loss)/profit for the financial year before taxation
Taxation
(Loss)/profit for the financial year after taxation
Property profits transferred to realised capital reserve
(Loss)/profit transferred to P&L reserves

JOINT VENTURES & ASSOCIATES
BW’s share of operating surplus and losses of
associates and joint ventures contributed £1.1m to the
Group’s result. These arose mainly from the profits from
property development in Edinburgh and Leeds.
SCOTLAND
BW is a single legal entity and operates on a crossborder basis. However, under devolved powers we are
accountable to the Scottish Executive for the waterways
in Scotland. Separate funding is received directly from
the Scottish Executive. An Operations and Financial
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“BW’s strategic investment in SAP gives it a single, unified solution
that will allow for integration across the whole business. SAP will
provide a good solid infrastructure to support the company’s
ongoing growth and continuing expansion and development”
Dudley Feather, Service Industries Business Unit Manager, SAP

Review and pro forma accounts for Scotland can be
found on pages 40 and 41.
CORPORATION TAX
A provision of £0.7 million (2002: £4.3 million) has
been held for current and previous year corporation tax
liabilities which have arisen on trading account and
capital gains.
Tax losses carried forward at 31March 2003 reduced
to £4.3 million (2002: £5.9 million).
FIXED ASSETS
BW’s investment properties are carried at a 31 March
2003 value of £317.6 million (2002: £292.9 million).
This carrying value is based on a valuation at 31
December 2002, performed by Gerald Eve. Within the
total there was an increase in the valuation of £25.2
million on properties held at the beginning of the year,
and investment property additions during the year were
£6.7 million (2002: £6.1 million). These gains were
offset by disposals of £8.0 million.
Group investment properties
£ million
Value at 1 April
Additions
Disposals1
Other movements
Revaluation
Value at 31 March 2003
1

2002/03
£m
292.9
6.7
(8.0)
0.8
25.2
317.6

2001/02
£m
293.2
6.1
(21.2)
(1.0)
15.8
292.9

Disposals in 2001/02 were exceptionally high, arising mainly from property
disposals already contracted for disposal at the end of 2000/01. Disposals in
2002/03 were also lower due to the injection of cash arising from the 2001/02
sale of other property rights to fund property investment.d

The investment properties sold during the year achieved
a profit of £3.8 million (2001/02: £2.1 million) over
previous valuations and a further £8.0 million (2001/02:
£14.6 million) over historic book value.
The average rental yield on investment properties
based on their opening value was 0.3% higher than the
previous year at 6.6% (2001/02: 6.3%), with no growth
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
BW’s accounting policies have been reviewed during the
year by the Audit Committee, in accordance with FRS
18 ‘Accounting Policies’. The policies are presented on
page 66. The main change to the policies during the
year is the requirement to prepare consolidated
accounts following the acquisition of a subsidiary
company and the material nature of our joint venture
companies. A further change was required to
accommodate the change in accounts for the Tees
Navigation cash dowry as deferred income (see note 25
on page 91).
CASH FLOWS

Summary Cash flow
Operating loss
Non-cash items
(Decrease)/increase in
working capital
Movement on provisions
Net cash outflow from
operating activities
Investment, acquisitions and
servicing of finance
Financing
(Decrease)/increase in cash

Group
BW
2002/03 2001/02
£m
£m
(19.5)
(10.0)
5.3
4.2
(13.9)
(1.1)

3.4
(2.4)

(29.2)

(4.8)

20.4
4.6
(4.2)

6.7
4.0
5.9

Year end cash balances reduced by £4.2 million
compared to an increase of £5.9 million last year. This
was largely as a result of the operating loss funded by
the significant one off gain from property interests in
London Docklands referred to above.

LONDON DOCKLANDS

▲
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in the opening net book value of investment properties
and a 5.1% growth in rents.
The net book value of other fixed assets at 31
March 2003 totalled £74.0 million (2002: £65.9 million)
of which £48.0 million relates to operational land and
buildings (2002: £42.6 million).
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BRITISH WATERWAYS ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS

45

▲ TEES BARRAGE

The net cash outflow from operating activities was
£29.2 million (2001/02: £4.8 million). The operating
loss was £19.5 million (2001/02: £10.0 million). Noncash items of £5.3 million include £4.0 million
depreciation net of capital grant. The movement in
working capital arose mainly from a £25.8 million
increase in debtors, including significant one-off
contracts on deferred payment terms. There was an
exceptional VAT debtor generated by the significant
volumes of maintenance work undertaken in March. This
is offset by a £12.4 million increase in creditors, again
mainly generated by expenditure accrued in March.
The total net cash inflow on investment, acquisitions
and servicing of finance was £20.4 million (2001/02:
£6.7 million). Receipts from the sale of fixed assets of
£13.8 million (2001/02: £11.9 million) and the final
tranche from the one-off sale of other property rights,
£30.0 million, increased more than the gross fixed asset
spend of £24.7 million (2001/02: £18.5 million).
TREASURY MANAGEMENT
BW does not invest cash in equities, treasury bills,
certificates of deposit, financial derivatives, or in high
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return/high risk deposits. BW does not have any
significant level of exposure to foreign currencies.
BW has a bank overdraft facility of £3.0 million
which was unused at both the end of 2002/03 and at
the end of the previous year.
No new loans were taken out in the year. However,
in the past BW took out a limited number of fixed term,
fixed interest loans from the National Loans Fund. Most
of those loans still in existence date back to the 1970s
and 1980s and were related to activities in which BW is
no longer engaged, such as freight carrying and
handling.
In 1999, the Government decided to make capital
contributions to BW to enable loans maturing before
2013 (£11.6 million at March 2003) to be repaid as
they matured, without BW having to take out new loans
to replace them.
Capital contributions of £1.6 million were received
during the year enabling borrowings to be reduced from
£16.3 million to £14.7 million. Details of outstanding
loans are set out in Note 18 in the accounts.
Financial gearing at 31 March 2003 fell to 3.9%
from 4.5% last year. The average rate of interest

“We are helping BW build a platform for the future. It’s one
of the biggest projects that LogicaCMG has been involved
in for SAP and it’s covered all aspects of BW’s business”

payable increased slightly from 11.7% to 12.2%
reflecting prevailing interest rates at the time the loans
were taken out.
Overall interest payable equalled interest receivable
(2001/02: £1.6 million net payable) reflecting higher
interest receivable of £3.6 million (2001/02: £2.4
million). Interest payable during the year comprised
payments on fixed term, fixed interest loans, interest
credited to provisions and interest earned from cash
deposits, held on behalf of external project funding
partners, and subsequently repaid as additional funding
to the project.
PENSION FUND
In common with many pension funds this year we are
reporting a deficit in the BW pension scheme under the
calculations required by the new accounting standard
FRS17 (see Note 7 on page 77)
The FRS17 calculations take a snapshot of the
fund's assets and liabilities as at 31st March 2003 and
are therefore particularly vulnerable to short term
movements in the stock market. BW's funding of the
pension scheme is determined from separate work by
the fund actuary reflecting assumptions as to the longterm performance of the fund.
The next actuarial valuation is due in 2004 and we
will be conducting a full review at that time. In the
meantime the fund has the necessary resources to meet
its current obligations and is comfortably within
statutory minimum funding limits.
SYSTEMS
During the year we have re-engineered our business
processes, and worked alongside partners LogicaCMG
to implement enterprise wide SAP software systems.
Live from April 2003, SAP has replaced all our
corporate IT systems. This significant investment in our
‘back-office’ and the resulting streamlining of business
processes will enable our people to work more
efficiently and spend more time with customers.

MARINAS
In managing our marinas we recognise that we are
competing directly with other operators of similar
facilities with whom we have a separate relationship as
track operator and sometimes as landlord. We therefore
run these businesses on a strictly commercial basis.
The marina sites each prepare business plans
meeting clearly defined corporate hurdle rates for
investment. Annual performance budgets are set with
targets including accounting profit, economic value
created and other non-financial indicators.
The net operating margins are sufficient to cover a
full allocation of indirect costs. These additional charges
are comprised of two elements:
i. an estimate (using a prescribed calculation) of time
spent by non marina personnel working at, or in
connection with, marinas.
ii. a further charge for overhead apportionment (Head
Office costs) using turnover as a indicator of activity.
We work closely with the trade to grow the market
for these services enabling new opportunities for both
BW marinas and our competitors. We will continue to
consult with all interested parties as we expand our
marinas business. In so doing we will, of course, comply
with all relevant competition regulations. In addition, we
are totally committed to act in a fair way at all times
given our unique position as track operator.
During 2003 we propose to place our marina assets
into a separate wholly owned subsidiary company
operated entirely at arms length from BW. In doing this,
the existing management accounting controls will be
further reinforced, and all sites operated by the subsidiary
will pay a market rent/connection charge to BW.
There will be increased transparency in reporting
from the public filing of a separate set of audited
accounts for the new subsidiary. A new Code of
Practice will further ensure that there is a level playing
field in respect of BW’s dealings with its subsidiary and
other marina operators.
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Gillian Thomas, Programme Manager, LogicaCMG
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▲ LOCK GATE REPLACEMENT AT BRATCH LOCKS ON THE STAFFS & WORCESTER CANAL

These changes will help deliver the demanding financial
performance targets we have set ourselves, whilst
serving to re-assure our competitors that our marinas do
not benefit from any unfair advantage from being part of
the wider BW group.
RISK MANAGEMENT
We have introduced the various elements of best
practice into our risk management framework. This
helps manage risk to create opportunities for innovation
and growth as well as identifying threats to the
achievement of our objectives. Our approach to risk
management is given on pages 55 and 56 which shows
the importance attached to ongoing clarification of risks,
ensuring effective control processes exist and for
embedding risk into BW culture.
The main risks stem from the ageing infrastructure
for which there is ongoing inspection, assessment and
prioritisation of remedial action. This shows a safetyrelated maintenance backlog of £15.5m and non safetyrelated maintenance arrears of £171.5m at 31 March
2003. We are on target to eliminate the safety-related
backlog entirely by the end of 2004.
We are dependent on continued funding from the
government to fulfil statutory obligations and elimination
of the backlog of maintenance. An increasingly
important source of funding is the use of partnerships in
the field of property and water transfer. These allow
exploitation of BW’s infrastructure by accessing
investment funds and development expertise.
Processes have been developed for choosing the right
partner, maximising internal and external resource and
allocating appropriate responsibilities.
We care for the safety of people on the waterways
through safety training, procedures, signage, regular
maintenance of assets and the development of relevant
competencies. Our staff have a vast range of expert
skills and experience which support opportunities for
innovation, change and growth, the benefits of which are
not achieved without risk. The changes to BW’s
structure and the implementation of new systems are
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managed through project control, communication,
regular performance appraisal and individual
development plans reflecting the new business
priorities.
In our wider objectives, we have a commitment to
deliver social, environmental and heritage benefits.
Risk-based assessments in accordance with our
Environmental Code of Practice are applied to all works
undertaken. Safety risks, vandalism and impediments to
access for all are mitigated by our youth policy and
community engagement through organisations with
strong involvement in social inclusion.

MARK SMITH
FINANCE DIRECTOR
May 2003

One of two public sector bodies selected for The Sunday Times

100 Best Companies to Work for 2003
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STATUTORY AND FINANCIAL FRAMEWORK

STATUTORY BASIS
The British Waterways Board (BW) is a public corporation
which was established by the Transport Act 1962 to
manage the inland waterways, docks and estates which
had previously been the responsibility of the British
Transport Commission.
BW is responsible for approximately 2000 miles of canals
and river navigations in England, Scotland and Wales,
together with their associated reservoirs, docks, repair
yards and workshops.
The Transport Act 1968 classified these waterways into:
a) The Commercial Waterways, which were to be kept
principally available for the commercial carrying of
freight and maintained in a suitable condition for use
by commercial freight carrying vessels.
b) The Cruising Waterways, which were to be kept
principally available for cruising, fishing and other
recreational purposes and maintained for use by vessels
constructed or adapted for the carriage of passengers
and driven by mechanical power.
c) The remainder, which have to be dealt with in the most
economical manner possible (consistent, in the case of
retained waterways, with the requirements of public
health and the preservation of amenity and safety), but
subject nevertheless to a duty (contained in the British
Waterways Act 1995) to take account of the desirability
of protecting them for future use as cruising waterways
or for other public recreational use.
Under s.27 of the Transport Act 1962, the government
may give directions of a general character to BW as to the
exercise of its functions and in February 1999 the
government published a Framework Document containing
its aims and objectives for BW. Under the terms of the
Framework Document, BW is required by the government
to operate and maintain its waterways to standards that
reflect use and prospects of use and any land drainage
requirements. Such standards do not always fully reflect
the historic standards for the channel dimensions of
Commercial and Cruising Waterways prescribed by the
Transport Act 1968.
The government requirement in the Framework Document
is expressed to be subject to BW’s statutory obligations.
Nevertheless the government (Scottish Ministers in respect
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of waterways in Scotland) have power to make Orders
varying the historic standards prescribed in the 1968 Act.
Furthermore, the currently prescribed standards may only
be enforced in special proceedings under that Act. The
government (and Scottish Ministers) have power to
intervene in any such enforcement proceedings and to
curtail them if they certify to the court that they intend to
make an Order specifying different statutory standards.
This power may be exercised if compliance with the
standards being enforced under the proceedings would
require the payment of further grant by the government (or
Scottish Executive).
The Framework Document also sets out BW’s wider
relationship with government and responsibilities of the
Board and Chief Executive, as well as setting a framework
for BW’s relations with users, the Waterways Ombudsman
and the Inland Waterways Amenity Advisory Council.
Consistent with its statutory obligations, powers and
objectives agreed with government, BW runs its affairs on
a commercial basis and promotes the fullest use of the
waterways for leisure, recreation & amenity, and freight
transport where appropriate.
GRANT
BW receives an annual grant in monthly instalments from
the government which assists it in meeting its statutory
obligations, including those services for which government
does not allow it to levy direct charges. BW’s activities in
England and Wales are being funded by Defra and in
Scotland are being funded by the Scottish Executive.
Conditions for the payment of grant and details of other
controls applicable to BW as a public corporation are set
out in Financial Memoranda issued by government.
Part of the grant received from government is used for the
purchase of vehicles, plant and equipment for maintaining
the waterways as economically as possible but on which no
return on investment can be obtained. This is treated in the
accounts as a capital grant and the income deferred and
brought into account in line with the depreciation charges
on the assets concerned.
BW is precluded from drawing government grant in
advance of need.

OBJECTIVE TO AVOID LOSS AND NOT DRAW GRANT
IN ADVANCE OF NEED
The above requirement of not drawing grant in advance of
need, combined with the statutory responsibility to avoid a
loss on revenue account, taking one year with another,
leads BW to target to break even on profit and loss
account each year.
BORROWINGS AND CAPITAL INVESTMENT
The government sets the maximum amount of grant and
any access to loans from the National Loans Fund to fund
capital expenditure. BW is not allowed long term
borrowings other than from the National Loans Fund. The
limit of all BW’s borrowings was increased to £35 million
under an order of the Secretary of State for the
Environment in March 2001 exercising powers contained
in the Water Act 1981. The Treasury annually renews
guarantees of bank overdraft facilities in order for BW to
meet day-to-day fluctuations in receipts and payments.

and annual grant from Defra and the Scottish Executive.
The grant received from the government during 2002/03
was £81.0 million of which £5.6 million was allocated
specifically for expenditure on operational fixed assets.
PREPARATION OF ACCOUNTS
British Waterways is required to prepare audited Annual
Accounts which comply with Companies Act requirements
and best commercial accounting practice, although the
information to be disclosed is amended and extended by
Direction of the Secretary of State for Environment, Food
and Rural Affairs as shown on page 64.
Expenditure on repairs and renewals of the basic canal
infrastructure is written off to profit and loss account as it
is incurred. Investment property is revalued annually by
external valuers.

BW’s profit generating capital expenditure can be funded
through access to National Loans Fund loans, subject to
government limits. In recent years BW has only been
permitted to borrow amounts equal to the total of earlier
loans due for repayment. Within these limitations, BW has
been restructuring its asset portfolio by disposal and
reinvestment to improve its ability to achieve its business
objectives. In February 1999 the Deputy Prime Minister
announced that the government had decided to phase out
most of BW’s outstanding debt as it matures, thus
removing from BW the need to take out new loans to
repay existing loans.
BW is also required to obtain government consent for all
expenditure projects over £3 million or when there are
novel or contentious features or to take an interest in a
body corporate in excess of 49%. It is furthermore required
to consult Defra or the Scottish Executive at the earliest
stage in the case of major development proposals where
the value of any BW investment, including the value of land
with planning consent for the proposal, exceeds £3 million.
DETERMINATION OF AVAILABLE FUNDING
The financial resources available to BW during any year are
controlled by the Government, which fixes resource and
capital expenditure budgets as part of bi-annual
Comprehensive Spending Reviews spanning three years.
BW manages its expenditure to remain within these budgets
and finances the expenditure from its own earned income
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BOARD MEMBERS’ REPORT
The Board Members present their annual report on the affairs of BW,
together with the accounts and auditors’ report, for the year ended
31 March 2003.
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
BW’s principal activities are set out on page 4.
BUSINESS REVIEW
A detailed review of BW’s performance during the year
and expected future developments is contained in the
Chairman’s Statement, the Chief Executive’s Review of
Operations and in the Finance Director’s Review.
RESULTS
The audited accounts for the year ended 31 March 2003
are shown on pages 69 to 91.
The analysis of income and expenditure in the accounts is
based on the current use of waterways rather than their
Transport Act 1968 classification. This provides a more
meaningful presentation but does not affect BW’s statutory
obligations set out in the Transport Act 1968.
BOARD MEMBERS
The Board Members who served during the year are shown
on page 5. A Register of Interests is maintained by the
Legal Director through whom public inspection can be
arranged.
STATUTORY MAINTENANCE OBLIGATIONS
Under its Framework Document, BW is required by the
Government to maintain its waterways to standards that
reflect use and prospects of use. Such standards do not
always fully reflect the historic standards prescribed by the
Transport Act 1968. The Board consider compliance with
the Framework Document requirements to be appropriate,
notwithstanding the statutory standards, in the light of the
power of the Government (and Scottish Ministers) to make
Orders varying the statutory prescribed standards and to
intervene in any enforcement proceedings. Further details
are given under the description of BW’s statutory and
financial framework on page 50.
FIXED ASSETS
Details of movements in fixed assets during the year,
including the revaluation of investment properties, are set
out in Note 8 to the accounts.
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BW does not incorporate revaluations of operational
properties in the accounts. Based upon an external
valuation at 31 December 2002, it is the opinion of the
Board Members that the operational property, excluding
the canal track, towing paths and reservoirs, has a market
value in the region of £83 million. A tax liability would not
be expected to arise if land and buildings were sold at
that value.
CHARITABLE AND POLITICAL CONTRIBUTIONS
BW has not made any charitable or political contributions.
PAYMENT POLICY
It is BW’s policy to agree payment terms with its suppliers
at the outset of a transaction, and abide by these terms,
subject to satisfactory performance by the supplier and the
timely presentation of an accurate invoice. Amounts owed
to suppliers are generally settled by the end of the month
following receipt of invoice. At the year end, the amount
owed to trade suppliers was equivalent to 24 days credit
(2002 : 8 days).
EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES
BW is committed to equality of opportunity and has policies
and procedures in place to ensure continuous
improvement. BW fully recognises its legal responsibilities,
particularly in respect of race relations, sex and disability
discrimination.
EMPLOYEES
BW places considerable value on the involvement of its
employees and has continued its practice of keeping them
informed on matters affecting them as employees and on
the various factors affecting its performance. This is achieved
through formal and informal meetings allowing the two-way
flow of information between management and employees,
and a monthly newspaper supplemented by occasional
regional information sheets, and employee surveys.
BW has common terms and conditions of employment and
single table bargaining with employee representatives
through National, Intermediate and Business Unit Forums.
Consultation on employment and other related matters

takes place at these forums in a spirit of co-operation and
open exchange of information and ideas.
All employees are covered by an annual performance and
development review process.
ENVIRONMENT AND HERITAGE
BW has a structured system in place to identify how work
should be carried out to protect and conserve heritage and
environment. This is guided by our Environmental Code of
Practice (ECP) – our environmental management system.
BW’s natural and cultural heritage and the requirements to
conserve or improve it are described in a range of
Conservation Plans, Biodiversity Action Plans and a
Heritage Strategy. Further information on such plans and
strategy is available on request.
AUDIT
PricewaterhouseCoopers were appointed as external
auditors of BW for the year ended 31 March 2003 by the
Secretary of State for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs in
accordance with Section 24(2) of the Transport Act 1962.
By order of the Board

NIGEL JOHNSON
LEGAL DIRECTOR AND SECRETARY TO THE BOARD
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate governance is concerned with ensuring that an
organisation is acting in accordance with best practice. The
Combined Code published in 1998 sets out the principles
and provisions for corporate governance. Guidance for
Directors on the internal control requirements of the
Combined Code (the Turnbull Report) was published in
September 1999. Detailed below is an explanation of how
the Board has applied the principles of the Turnbull Report
and the Combined Code.
COMPLIANCE WITH THE COMBINED CODE
The Board is committed to the highest standards of
corporate governance. Following the recommendations of
the reports on the Role and Effectiveness of Non
Executive Directors (the Higgs Report) and Audit
Committees (the Smith Report), the Board is currently
reviewing its governance arrangements and will make any
relevant changes that are necessary.
The Board considers it has complied throughout the
financial year and up to the date of approval of the annual
report and accounts with the Combined Code, except for
those matters discussed below or those which cannot be
applied to BW.
BW is subject to public sector controls, government
monitoring and approval, Parliamentary scrutiny and
external reviews.
BOARD STRUCTURE
The principal difference between BW and listed companies
relates to the structure of the Board and the appointment
of Board Members.
BW is controlled by a Board comprising a Chairman and
Vice Chairman and other Non-Executive Members whose
appointment is fixed for periods of either two or three
years and whose remuneration is set by the Secretary of
State for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs and Scottish
Ministers. As such, Sections 1A.5, 1A.6 and 1B of the
Code relating to the appointment, re-election and
remuneration of Board Members is not applicable to BW.
However there is a Remuneration Committee comprising
five Non-Executive Board Members which, as its main task,
considers annually the performance of the Executive
Directors and determines their remuneration levels.
The Board meets regularly (six times during the year) and
brings an independent judgement to bear on financial,
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strategic, performance and organisational issues. Reporting
to the Board are Executive Directors who have
responsibility for management and for the development of
business strategy and policies, subject to approval and
general oversight by the Board. Biographical details of
the Board Members can be found on page 5. All the
Non-Executive Board Members are independent from
management and the majority are free from any business
or other relationship which could materially interfere with
the exercise of their independent judgement. On specific
issues where there may be a potential conflict of interest,
Members declare their interests and withdraw from the
meeting. This is noted in the minutes.
The Chairman has ensured that the Board Members have
been provided with appropriate and timely information and
that their enquiries have been properly met.
The Board has a schedule of matters specifically reserved to it
for decision and has also defined those delegated to Board
Committees and the Executive Directors. The Board considers
that the Non-Executive Members bring a sufficient strength of
independence to the Board and has not nominated any one
Non-Executive Member to be a senior independent Board
Member. The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive are
separated and clearly defined in the delegation arrangements,
which also provide for all Board Members to have access to
the advice and services of the Secretary to the Board, and
take independent professional advice at BW’s expense after
notifying the Chairman. The Secretary ensures that new
Board Members receive appropriate training on appointment
which includes an information pack and an induction session
for new Audit Committee Members. The Secretary may only
be removed with the approval of the Board.
A subsidiary, British Waterways Pension Trustees Limited,
the trustee of the Pension Fund, is responsible for its own
governance. The trustee directors, who meet twice yearly,
are four Members of the Board, the Chief Executive, three
employee representatives and a representative elected by
current pensioners. Fund management is overseen by an
Investment Sub-Committee and is delegated to external
professional investment managers. Responsibility for the
management and administration of the Fund is vested in a
Committee of Management. Ongoing day to day
supervision of the administration of the Fund is carried out
by the Pensions Manager and staff, under an
administration agreement between British Waterways
Pension Trustees Limited and BW.

RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
Unlike a listed company, BW does not have shareholders
so that Sections 1C and 2 of the Combined Code do not
apply. The Board is responsible to the Secretary of State
for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs and Scottish
Ministers and maintains an ongoing dialogue at all levels
within government. The Board holds an Annual Meeting at
which it communicates the key business results and plan
for the future to the main user groups, its partners and
individual users.
AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Board’s Audit Committee comprises five Non-Executive
Board Members. It has written terms of reference and
meets at least three times a year to review the internal audit
plan, progress against that plan, and summary findings of
the internal and external auditors. In addition to reviewing
the financial results and accounting policies, the Committee
monitors corporate governance and the effectiveness of risk
management and internal control systems for the Board.
The Chief Executive and the Head of Audit attend the
meetings when appropriate, as do the Executive Directors
and external auditors. The Committee also meets the
external auditors without Executive Directors present.
Details of the Members are given on page 5.
A new Audit Committee charter applies from June 2003
which is reproduced on page 57.
BOARD MEMBERS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN
RESPECT OF THE GROUP ACCOUNTS
The Board Members are required to prepare accounts for
each financial year which comply with the Accounts
Direction issued by the Secretary of State for Environment,
Food and Rural Affairs in respect of BW (see pages 64
and 65).
In preparing those accounts, Board Members are
required to:
● select suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently
● make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent
● state whether applicable accounting standards have been
followed, subject to any material departures disclosed
and explained in the accounts
● prepare the group accounts on the going concern basis
unless it is inappropriate to presume that the organisation
will continue in business.

The Board Members confirm that the group accounts
comply with the above requirements.
Board Members are responsible for ensuring that proper
accounting records are kept and that these disclose with
reasonable accuracy, at any time, the financial position of
BW and enable them to ensure that the accounts comply
with the Direction.
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of
BW and hence for taking reasonable steps to prevent and
detect fraud and other irregularities.
GOING CONCERN
The funding arrangements of BW differ from those of a
public limited company. BW receives an annual grant from
government to assist it in meeting its statutory obligations,
as referred to in the Statutory and Financial Framework on
page 50. The grant available for the year ending 31 March
2004 has been notified as £85.0 million. It is anticipated that
grant will continue at levels sufficient to enable BW to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.
INTERNAL CONTROL
The Board Members acknowledge their ultimate
responsibility for BW’s system of internal control and for
reviewing its effectiveness. These internal controls are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.
Control environment
There is a clear organisation structure with delegated
responsibilities and authorities. The Board is committed to
achieving high standards from its people. A code of
conduct and ethics statement is supported by high
recruitment standards, an appraisal process and a policy of
unlocking the potential of staff. The key control processes
are documented and available on-line throughout BW.
Performance monitoring
The Executive Directors submit a rolling three year Business
Plan, detailed annual budgets and key performance indicators
on its critical success factors to the Board for approval. The
plan describes the implementation of the Board’s long-term
strategic vision and is supported by the individual business
unit plans which apply consistent economic and financial
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assumptions. Monthly operational reports and financial
summaries together with regular forecasts are produced for
each business unit and reviewed by the Executive. Progress
against the key performance indicators are supplied on a
quarterly basis to the Executive for review. Detailed reports
and projections are presented to each Board meeting.
Risk identification and management
There is an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and
managing the significant risks faced by BW. This process is
regularly reviewed by the Board.
Risks are identified in each business unit plan and are
reviewed by the Executive Directors and the Board. The
key risks are subject to regular review by the Executive
Directors to identify new and changing risks. The results
are incorporated into the Chief Executive’s operating report
to the Board. The Board also considers specific reports on
key risks, including the statutory arrears and safety
backlog. Each Regional Director annually completes a letter
of assurance outlining how risk management and the
control environment has provided reasonable assurance of
effective and efficient operations throughout the period.
The Chief Executive considers this with each Regional
Director during the annual corporate governance review
and a statement is given to the Audit Committee
summarising the significant risks, controls and required
action points.
This is supplemented by ongoing risk assessments at each
business unit jointly by management and internal audit.
Monitoring
During the year the Audit Committee:
● reviews the internal and external audit plans
● considers reports from management, internal and external
audit on the system of risk management, internal control
and any significant control weaknesses
● discusses with management the actions and progress in
dealing with identified problem areas.
The Chairman of the Audit Committee reports the outcome
of the Audit Committee meetings and any significant
internal control issues to the Board. The Board receives the
minutes of all Audit Committee meetings.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE CHARTER
Constitution
1 The Board has established a committee of the Board to be known
as the Audit Committee.
Membership
2 The committee shall be appointed by the Board from amongst the
independent non-executive directors of BW, other than the BW
chairman. The committee shall consist of five members. A quorum
shall be two members. At least one member of the committee
should have significant, recent and relevant financial experience.
3 The chairman of the committee shall be appointed by the Board.
Attendance at meetings
4 The Chief Executive, Finance Director, Head of Audit and the
external auditors shall attend meetings at the standing invitation of
the committee.
5 Other Board members shall attend if invited by the committee.
6 There shall be at least one meeting a year during which the
committee can meet the external auditors and Head of Audit
independently without management present.
7 The Secretary to the Board or his nominee shall be secretary of the
committee.
Frequency of meetings
8 Meetings shall be held not less than three times a year, and where
appropriate should coincide with key dates in BW’s financial
reporting cycle.
9 External auditors or the Head of Audit may request a meeting if
they consider that one is necessary.
10 Notice of each meeting confirming the venue, time and date
together with an agenda of items to be discussed shall be
forwarded to each member of the committee prior to the date of
the meeting in a timely manner.
Authority
11 The committee is authorised by the Board to investigate any activity
within its terms of reference. It has unrestricted access to BW’s
management, books and records and is authorised to seek any
information that it requires from any employee. All employees shall
be directed to co-operate with any request made by the committee.
12 The committee is authorised to obtain outside legal or independent
professional advice at BW’s expense and to secure the attendance
of outsiders with relevant experience and expertise if it considers
this necessary.
13 The Head of Audit shall be given the right of direct access to the
chairman of the committee.
Responsibilities
14 The responsibilities of the committee shall be:
External audit
a to discuss with the external auditor, before the audit commences,
the nature and scope of the audit and to review the auditors’ quality
control procedures and steps taken by the auditor to respond to
changes in regulatory and other requirements
b to assess the independence of the external auditor, ensuring that
key partners are rotated at appropriate intervals
c to approve any fees in respect of non audit services provided by the
external auditor and to ensure that the provision of non audit
services does not impair the external auditors’ independence or
objectivity
d to discuss with the external auditor issues such as compliance with
accounting standards and proposals by the external auditor
regarding the internal auditing standards

e to review the external auditor’s management letter and
management’s response
f to meet with the external auditor at the reporting stage post audit
to discuss the audit, including problems and reservations arising
from the audit and any matters the auditor may wish to discuss
g annually review the performance of the external auditors, including
the cost effectiveness of the audit
Internal audit and corporate governance
h to review the internal audit programme, ensure co-ordination
between the internal and external auditors, and ensure that the
internal audit function is adequately resourced and has appropriate
standing within BW
i to consider any major external or internal audit recommendations
and any major findings of internal investigations and management’s
response to them
j to approve the appointment or dismissal of the Head of Audit
k to review the procedures for handling allegations from
whistleblowers
l policies for preventing or detecting fraud
m to review management’s and the internal audit reports on the
effectiveness of systems for internal control, financial reporting and
risk management
Annual statements
n to review, and challenge where necessary, the actions and
judgements of management, in relation to the annual statements
before submission to the Board, paying particular attention to:
● significant accounting policies and practices, and any changes
in them
● decisions requiring a major element of judgement
● the extent to which the financial statements are affected by any
unusual transactions in the year and how they are disclosed
● the clarity of disclosures
● significant adjustments resulting from the audit
● the going concern assumption
● compliance with accounting standards
● compliance with stock exchange and other legal requirements
● compliance with the Combined Code on Corporate Governance
● reviewing the company’s statement on internal control systems
prior to endorsement by the Board and to review the policies and
process for identifying and assessing business risks and the
management of those risks, and
o to consider other topics, as defined by the Board.
Reporting procedures
15 The secretary shall circulate the minutes of meetings of the
committee to all members of the Board.
16 The chairman of the committee shall report to the Board on all
meetings of the committee.
17 The committee members shall conduct an annual review of their
work and these terms of reference and make recommendations to
the Board.
18 The committee’s duties and activities during the year shall be
disclosed in the annual financial statements.
19 The chairman shall attend the Annual Meeting and shall answer
questions, through the BW Chairman, on the audit committee’s
activities and its responsibilities.
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THE BW BOARD
Board Members’ appointments are determined by the
Secretary of State for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs
or (in the case of two Board Members) Scottish Ministers
and are for a fixed term with the option for this to be
extended by a further term. The contracts are terminable
upon notice not exceeding six months. The Secretary of
State or Scottish Ministers as appropriate, determines
Board Members’ emoluments.
No Board Member receives a benefit in kind.
The Chairman’s pension entitlement is calculated by
analogy to the British Waterways (1990) Pension Fund.
The increase in the provision required for the year is
calculated by a qualified actuary using the discount rates
consistent with those required under FRS17 as shown in
note 7 to the Annual Accounts.
There were no contracts or transactions in which the Board
Members had a disclosable interest.
Details of Board Members’ fees are shown in the table on
page 60.
Reporting to the Board but not Board Members, are
Executive Directors who have responsibility for management
and for the development of business strategy and policies,
subject to approval and general oversight by the Board.
THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The Board has established a Remuneration Committee
responsible for determining and reviewing the terms of
employment and remuneration for Executive Directors. The
remuneration principles established for this senior group of
employees provides the framework for remuneration policy
within the business. The Committee comprises five Board
Members and is chaired by the Board’s Vice Chairman.
During 2002/03 the Committee members were:
Sir Peter Soulsby, Chairman
Dr Campbell Christie
Ian Darling
Dr George Greener
Terry Tricker
The Chief Executive and Personnel Director attend the
Remuneration Committee by invitation to present
recommendations and provide technical support but have
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no input into decisions affecting their own remuneration.
In determining appropriate remuneration levels, the
Remuneration Committee has access to specialist
independent advice, surveys conducted by external
consulting firms and remuneration information on
comparable organisations. During 2002 the Committee
commissioned a full external evaluation of executive
director remuneration by Towers Perrin Remuneration
Consultants (TPRC). All Executive Director roles were fully
evaluated by TPRC and responsibility levels were assessed
and compared with organisations of similar size in the
public and private sectors. TPRC recommended that the
closest match of responsibility, liability and risk were to be
found in the private sector.
Following this extensive review the Remuneration
Committee produced a Remuneration Policy based on
TPRC recommendations. The Committee also
recommended that the details of Executive Director
remuneration should be publicly disclosed. The Executive
Directors agreed with this recommendation and gave the
necessary consent for full details to be included in the
table on page 60.
REMUNERATION POLICY
The Remuneration Committee’s overriding objective is to
ensure that BW’s remuneration policy and remuneration
packages are sufficient to attract, retain and motivate a
high quality team of Executive Directors to deliver the
business strategy where growth is the fundamental
requirement for a sustainable business.
The overall recommendation of TPRC was that BW should
match base salaries to market median levels with a
proportion of variable pay in the form of annual bonus.
They also recommended that, unlike the private sector, a
Long Term Incentive Plan was not applicable at this stage
in BW’s development.
A summary of each element of the remuneration package
is set out below.
1. Basic salary
Basic salaries are normally reviewed annually on 1 June
and increases are determined by reference to comparator
information taking into account each Director’s contribution
during the year. The evaluation by TPRC during 2002
indicated that Executive Director salaries were significantly

below the appropriate median market levels. The
Remuneration Committee recommended that salaries
should be increased towards the market levels in a staged
way. Details of basic salary levels for 2002/03 for each
Executive Director are shown in the table on page 60.

achievement of a range of stretching targets set to
encourage each Director to achieve performance levels
over and above the normal expectations of their role.
Targets are directly linked to the achievement of key
strategic business activities.

2. Annual bonus
A maximum total annual bonus of 30% (40% for the Chief
Executive) of basic salary may be awarded subject to the
achievement of Corporate performance targets measured
by income generation and personal performance measured
against the achievement of individual targets. Fundamental
measures of customer satisfaction and asset infrastructure
security are in place and have to be satisfactorily achieved
before consideration is given to any bonus payment. The
Remuneration Committee requires internal audit and
external verification of these non-financial measures. The
Remuneration Committee reserves total discretion to award
or withhold bonus payments taking account of any
mitigating factors.

3. Benefits
The Executive Directors are entitled to a company car,
health insurance and critical illness insurance. Details of
the levels of taxable benefit are shown in the table on
page 60.

This level of potential total annual bonus was
recommended by the Remuneration Committee to reflect
in part the absence of Long-Term Incentive Plan
arrangements that normally exist in the private sector.
Bonus payments are normally made on 1 June each year.
Total bonus payments for each Executive Director are
shown in the table on page 60.
2.1 Corporate Performance element
Of the total bonus potential up to 17.5% (20% for the
Chief Executive) of basic salary may be awarded for the
achievement of income generation targets. In broad terms
the achievement of budgeted corporate income would
indicate that half Corporate performance bonus would be
appropriate with full bonus applicable only where income
exceeds budget by a defined target. Failure to significantly
achieve budget income levels would normally indicate that
no corporate bonus is payable. The Remuneration
Committee selected income generation as the overarching
target and indicator of business growth to ensure a clear
performance focus within the complex range of objectives
that BW is required to achieve bearing in mind the controls
that exist on the quality of income because of the need to
breakeven on the P&L Account.
2.2 Personal Performance element
Of the total bonus potential, up to 12.5% (20% for the
Chief Executive) of basic salary may be awarded for the

4. Pensions
All Executive Directors participate in the BW (1990)
Pension Fund which provides a pension on a defined
benefit basis and based on basic salary. Executive
Directors are required to retire at age 60 rather than 65 as
is normal in BW and are compensated for this by the
purchase on their behalf by BW of 5 years pension service.
Where death in service benefit for an Executive Director is
limited by Inland Revenue regulations the shortfall is
covered by a separate insurance arrangement and the
premium is paid by BW. The Remuneration Committee is in
the process of considering the potential effects that Inland
Revenue limits have on individual Executive Director
pension benefits. Arrangements to compensate for these
effects are under consideration. Details of accrued pension
levels are shown in the table on page 61.
5. Notice Period
Executive Directors are entitled to 12 months notice of
termination of contract by BW. Directors are required to
give BW 6 months notice.
6. External Appointments for Executive Directors
The Board recognises that Executive Directors may be
invited to become non-executive directors of other
companies unconnected with BW's activities and that such
appointments can broaden their knowledge and experience
to the benefit of BW. On the basis that it does not impact
upon their executive duties directors are generally allowed
to accept one such appointment and retain any resulting
fee. In addition Executive Directors may also serve as nonexecutive directors of joint venture companies. In such
circumstances fees are not payable to Executive Directors
as activities of this nature are part of the normal
responsibilities of the Directors. The disclosable external
interests of Executive Directors are set out in Note 21 to
the accounts on page 90.
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SUMMARY OF DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 2002/03
The information provided below in respect of the BW Board complies with the provisions of Schedule 7A of the
Companies Act 1985, as required by the Accounts Direction of the Secretary of State. In addition, and with their
agreement, BW has chosen to include information on the remuneration of the Executive Directors.

2002/03

2001/02

DATE OF EXPIRY OF

FEES

TOTAL

TOTAL

current term

£

£

£

9/7/05

66,598

66,598

64,896

30/9/04

13,761

13,761

13,409

BW Board
George Greener, Chairman
Sir Peter Soulsby, Vice Chairman
Susan Achmatowicz

9/10/04

10,433

10,433

4,949

Campbell Christie

30/6/04

10,433

10,433

10,166

3/9/06

10,433

10,433

10,166

9/10/04

10,433

10,433

4,949

Ian Darling
George Fleming
Helen Gordon

3/9/06

10,433

10,433

10,166

Derek Langslow

3/9/06

10,433

10,433

10,166

Janet Lewis-Jones

9/10/04

10,433

10,433

4,949

Adeeba Malik

9/10/04

10,433

10,433

4,949

Terry Tricker

10,433

4,949

9/10/04

10,433

Carolan Dobson (retired September 2001)

-

-

Paul King (retired September 2001)

-

4,971

-

4,971

174,256

174,256

153,656

TAXABLE

2002/03

2001/02

SALARY

BONUS

BENEFITS

TOTAL

TOTAL

£

£

£

£

£

Executive Directors
1

Robin Evans, Chief Executive

125,257

27,600

11,061

163,918

120,495

David Fletcher, Chief Executive (to 12 December 2002)

112,646

39,971

11,508

164,125

175,273

2,968

-

-

2,968

-

101,766

25,680

12,341

139,787

107,264

Vincent Moran

86,333

23,400

5,788

115,521

87,246

Simon Salem

86,333

19,500

9,178

115,011

80,404

James Froomberg (from 24 March 2003 )
Nigel Johnson

William Schlegel
Stewart Sim
Mark Smith

92,594

24,000

12,196

128,790

103,759

113,728

29,211

13,290

156,229

125,395

106,428

26,400

9,772

142,600

96,103

828,053

215,762

85,134

1,128,949

895,939

Robin Evans was previously employed by BW as Commercial Director until his appointment as Chief Executive from 12 December 2002.

1
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ACCRUED PENSION
INCREASE IN
INCREASE IN

INCREASE IN

TRANSFER VALUE

ACCRUED

ACCRUED

TRANSFER VALUE OF

ACCRUED

ACCRUED

PENSION

LUMP SUM

ACCRUED BENEFITS

OVER THE YEAR

PENSION AT

LUMP SUM AT

DURING THE

DURING

31 MARCH

31 MARCH

DIRECTORS’

31 MARCH 2003 31 MARCH 2003

NET OF

YEAR

THE YEAR

2003

2002

CONTRIBUTIONS

£pa

£

£pa

£

£

£

£

3,940

-

1,019

-

61,000

42,800

14,608

Robin Evans

15,321

-

2,818

-

119,651

130,081

(15,804)

David Fletcher

14,745

-

5,452

-

282,853

159,836

119,300

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Nigel Johnson

5,978

-

2,862

-

46,200

31,701

9,125

Vincent Moran

9,381

-

2,741

-

67,811

63,606

Simon Salem

28,275

5,683

7,399

646

187,848

186,716

(3,567)

William Schlegel

30,732

10,885

6,592

1,718

236,425

248,245

(16,870)

Stewart Sim

59,094

38,025

12,082

6,380

813,814

687,739

119,815

Mark Smith

4,201

-

2,368

-

26,379

15,155

5,850

BW Board Member
George Greener
Executive Directors

James Froomberg

(494)

The pension benefit is the increase in transfer value after indexation in accrued pension during the year, less the Board Members’ or
Executive Directors’ own contributions. The accrued annual pension is the amount, on attaining normal pension age, to which the
Board Member or Executive Director would be entitled if he had left BW at the year end or is entitled, having retired during the year.
The transfer values, calculated by reference to GN11 published by the Institute of Actuaries, are of the accrued benefits under the
scheme at the dates stated not including any additional voluntary contributions.
Signed on behalf of the Board
N Johnson
Legal Director and Secretary to the Board
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE
SECRETARY OF STATE FOR THE DEPARTMENT
FOR ENVIRONMENT, FOOD AND RURAL AFFAIRS

We have audited the financial statements which comprise
the profit and loss account, the balance sheet, the cash flow
statement, the statement of total recognised gains and
losses and the related notes (note 1 to 25), which have been
prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by
the revaluation of certain fixed assets and the accounting
policies set out in the statement of accounting policies.
Respective responsibilities of Board Members
and Auditors
The Board Members’ responsibilities for preparing the
annual report and the financial statements in accordance
with applicable United Kingdom law and accounting
standards are set out in the statement of Board Members’
responsibilities.
Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements in
accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements
and United Kingdom Auditing Standards issued by the
Auditing Practices Board. This report, including the opinion,
has been prepared for and only for British Waterways
Board’s members as a body in accordance with the
provisions of the Transport Act 1962 and for no other
purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or
assume responsibility for any other purpose, or to any other
person to whom this report is shown, or into whose hands
it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior
consent in writing.
We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial
statements give a true and fair view and whether the
financial statements are properly prepared in accordance
with the provisions of the Transport Act 1962, and any
directions issued by the Secretary of State for the
Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs. We
also report to you if, in our opinion, the Board Members’
report is not consistent with the financial statements, if
British Waterways Board has not kept proper accounting
records, if we have not received all the information and
explanations we require for our audit, or if information
specified by law, or the accounts direction, regarding Board
Members’ remuneration and transactions is not disclosed.
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We read the other information contained in the annual
report and consider the implications for our report if we
become aware of any apparent misstatements or material
inconsistencies with the financial statements. The other
information comprises only the Board Members’ report, the
Directors’ remuneration report, the Chairman’s statement,
the operating and financial review, and the corporate
governance statement.
We also, at the request of the Board Members, review
whether the corporate governance statement reflects
British Waterways Board’s compliance with the seven
provisions of the Combined Code for our review, and we
report if it does not. We are not required to consider
whether the Board Members’ statements on internal
control cover all risks and controls, or to form an opinion on
the effectiveness of British Waterways Board’s corporate
governance procedures, or its risk and control procedures.
The maintenance and integrity of the British Waterways
Board’s website is the responsibility of the Board Members;
the work carried out by the auditors does not involve
consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the
auditors accept no responsibility for any changes that may
have occurred to the financial statements since they were
initially presented on the website.
Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the
preparation and dissemination of financial statements may
differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.
Basis of audit opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing
standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit
includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant
to the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates
and judgements made by the Board Members in the
preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to British Waterways
Board’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately
disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements
are free from material misstatement, whether caused by
fraud, or other irregularity, or error, and in all material
respects, the expenditure and income have been applied to
the purposed intended by Parliament and the financial
transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.
In forming our opinion, we also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial
statements.
Opinion
In our opinion:
The financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of British Waterways Board and the group
at 31 March 2003 and of its loss and cash flows of the
group for the year then ended and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Directions of the
Secretary of State for Environment, Food and Rural
Affairs;
● In all material respects, the expenditure and income have
been applied to the purposes intended by Parliament and
the financial transactions conform to the authorities
which govern them.
●

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
Southwark Towers
32 London Bridge Street
London
SE1 9SY
5 June 2003
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ACCOUNTS DIRECTION
British Waterways Board direction given by the Secretary of State for
the Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs in respect of
the annual accounts.
The Secretary of State for Environment, Food and Rural
Affairs in exercise of the powers conferred by section 24
of the Transport Act 1962 and of all other powers enabling
her in that respect, and with the consent of the Treasury
and in consultation with the Scottish Executive, hereby
makes the following direction.
1. The annual accounts, which it is the duty of the British
Waterways Board (hereinafter referred to as BW) to
prepare in respect of each accounting year until further
notice, shall comprise in respect of BW:
(a) in respect of the Board and its subsidiaries
(i) a board members’ report
(ii) a consolidated profit and loss account
(iii) a consolidated statement of recognised gains
and losses
(iv) a consolidated balance sheet; and
(v) a consolidated cash flow statement; and
(b) in respect of the Board (public corporation)
(i) a balance sheet;
including in each case such notes as may be necessary for
the purposes referred to in paragraph 2 below.
2. The annual accounts referred to above shall give a true
and fair view of the profit or loss, state of affairs and
cash flows of BW and its subsidiaries. Subject to the
foregoing requirements, without limiting the information
given, and save as described in Schedule 1 to this
direction, the annual accounts shall also, where
applicable, comply with:
(a) the accounting and disclosure requirements of
companies legislation currently in force;
(b) the best commercial accounting practice as defined by
UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (UK
GAAP) and accounting standards adopted or issued by
the Accounting Standards Board; and
(c) any additional disclosure or accounting requirements
that the Treasury may issue from time to time in respect
of public corporations’ accounts.
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3. The balance sheet shall be prepared under the
historical cost convention modified by the revaluation of
investment properties.
4. Clarification of the application of the accounting and
disclosure requirements of the Companies Act and
accounting standards is given in Schedule 1 to this
Direction. The annual accounts shall include the
information set out in Schedule 2 to this direction.
5. The Direction shall be reproduced as an annex to the
annual accounts.
6. The Direction issued on 20 May 2002 is hereby
revoked.
Dated 27 January 2003
Signed by authority of the Secretary of State
J ROBERTS

A Senior Civil Servant in the Department for Environment,
Food and Rural Affairs
Schedule 1
In the balance sheet, loans from the Secretary of State
shall be grouped with capital and reserves. Interest on
these loans shall be separately disclosed in the profit and
loss account. When preparing its balance sheet, BW shall
have regard to the balance sheet format 1 prescribed in
Schedule 4 to the Companies Act 1985. Items A to J in
Format 1 shall be presented so as to show the total of
those items separately from the totals of item K (capital
and reserves). The disclosure exemptions permitted by the
Companies Act for small and medium size companies do
not apply unless approved by the Treasury.
Schedule 2
(I) The board members’ report shall
(a) contain the information which the Companies Act
1985 requires to be disclosed in the directors’
report, where appropriate;
(b) state that the accounts have been prepared in a
form notified by the Secretary of State with the
consent of the Treasury in accordance with the
relevant statute and
(c) include a brief history and statutory background
of BW.

(II) The annual accounts, or the notes thereto, shall
disclose: the turnover and other operating income,
operating costs, each analysed as follows:
(i) BW (public corporation: to include an analysis of
expenditure on: (a) multiple use waterways, (b)
leisure waterways and (c) waterways not fully
navigable)
(ii) BW’s subsidiary companies
(iii) BW’s share of joint ventures and associates
(III) The annual accounts shall also disclose details of:
(a) rents receivable for the year showing separately
rents from investment property and rents from
other property;
(b) interests during the year in other transport
undertakings and other trade investments;
(c) government grant received during the year
reconciled to income from grant as shown in the
profit and loss account;
(d) indebtedness to the Secretary of State (National
Loans Fund) at the year end including details of
maturity dates, interest rates and information
about the use of BW’s borrowing powers;
(e) the chairman’s and board members’ emoluments
for the year provided written consent has been
obtained to disclosure under the Data Protection
Act 1998 and if consent to disclosure is withheld
then a statement to that effect against the name
of the individual (this consent is not required
where a requirement to disclose is a condition in
the employment contract);
(f) staff costs for the year, excluding non-executive
board members, according to categories of staff;
(g) a statement of the number of employees during
the year, excluding board members, whose
emoluments excluding pension contributions fell in
each bracket of a scale in multiples of £10,000,
starting at £50,000;
(h) a statement that the resource Departmental
Expenditure Limit (DEL), capital DEL and
resource annually managed expenditure budget
limits set by the Department have not been
exceeded.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A summary of the principal accounting policies, all of which
have been applied consistently throughout the year and
the preceding year, except consolidation (see below), is set
out below.
BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
Under Section 24(1)(b) of the Transport Act 1962, BW is
required to prepare an annual Statement of Accounts in
such form and containing such particulars as the Secretary
of State for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs may, with
the approval of H.M. Treasury, from time to time direct. A
copy of the Accounts Direction, at present in force, is set
out on page 64.
ACCOUNTING CONVENTION
The accounts are prepared in accordance with the
historical cost convention modified by the revaluation of
investment properties and generally accepted accounting
principles in the United Kingdom, with the following
exception, required by the Accounts Direction:
In the balance sheet, National Loans Fund loans from the
Secretary of State are grouped with capital and reserves,
rather than as creditors falling due after more than one year.
CONSOLIDATION
In 2002/03 the BW Group comprises the British
Waterways Board (BW) and those subsidiaries
incorporated to act solely on behalf of, and for the benefit
of, BW. The acquisition method of accounting has been
adopted. Under this method, the results of subsidiaries
acquired of in the year are included in the consolidated
profit and loss account from the date of acquisition. In
previous years consolidated accounts were not prepared
as the amounts involved were not material to BW.
A joint venture is an entity in which BW has a long-term
interest and is jointly controlled by BW and one or more
other venturers under a contractual arrangement. The
accounts include the relevant percentage of all joint
ventures’ turnover and operating profit/loss on the face of
the profit and loss account and the share of gross assets
and gross liabilities on the face of the balance sheet. The
notes to the accounts disclose the names of joint ventures,
the nature of the business and details of the shares held
by BW.
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An associate is an entity (other than a subsidiary) in which
BW has a participating interest and over whose operating
and financial policies BW exercises a significant influence.
The accounts include the relevant percentage of all
associates’ operating profit/loss on the face of the profit
and loss account, as well as the relevant percentage of
any item below the operating profit line. The interest in
the associates’ net assets is shown on the face of the
balance sheet.
INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Goodwill related to joint ventures and associated
undertakings is included in the carrying value of the
investment. An impairment review of goodwill is carried out
annually by Directors, and any amortisation charged to the
profit and loss account.
TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
(a) Operational Assets
Waterways, reservoirs and towing paths were written off
in the capital reconstruction on 1 January 1969
resulting from the Transport Act 1968.
Land, buildings, and structures capitalised are:
(i) Purchases of land and the construction and major
improvement of buildings.
(ii) Additional assets and improvements to existing
assets of BW, provided the financial return meets
the commercial viability criteria laid down by BW.
All other expenditure on improvements, repairs and
renewals is charged to the profit and loss account as
it arises.
(b) Craft, plant and equipment
All expenditure on additions, improvements and
replacements is capitalised.
(c) Gross book value
The gross book value of fixed assets other than
investment properties is shown at the valuation at
1 January 1969 or at subsequent cost.
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost or valuation, net of
depreciation and any provision for permanent diminution in
value. Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets,
other than investment properties and freehold land, at rates

calculated to write off the cost or valuation, less estimated
residual value (if any), of each asset on a straight-line basis
over its expected useful life, as follows:

maintenance. The grant concerned is treated as deferred
capital grant and released to the profit and loss account
over the expected useful lives of the assets concerned.

Freehold buildings
Leasehold land and buildings

LEASED FIXED ASSETS
All current leases are operating leases. Rentals under
operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over
the lease term, even if the payments are not made on such
a basis.

Plant, machinery and structures
Vehicles

40 years
Over the term of the
lease
Between 5 and 25 years
5 years

Any differences between physical assets and asset
registers identified as a result of the organisation’s
continuous programme of asset verification are treated as
adjustments in the fixed asset statements, in the year in
which identified.
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Investment properties are revalued annually. Surpluses or
deficits on individual properties are transferred to the
investment revaluation reserve, unless a deficit below
historical cost (or its reversal) is expected to be permanent,
in which case it is charged (or credited) to the profit and
loss account. Depreciation is not provided in respect of
freehold investment properties or of leasehold investment
properties where the unexpired term of the lease is more
than 20 years. The Board Members consider that this
departure from the statutory accounting rules is necessary
to provide a true and fair view and to comply with
Statement of Standard Accounting Practice No. 19.
DISPOSAL OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
BW accounts for disposals of investment properties upon
completion of sale. The proceeds in respect of properties sold
are used for the funding of capital expenditure of a
commercial nature, or such other expenditure as agreed by the
Secretary of State for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs.
DEFERRED CONSIDERATION
Where BW enters into a significant sale of assets or rights
with deferred consideration terms, the net present value of
the amounts receivable, discounted at the clearing bank
base rate ruling at the date of the transaction, is recognised
in the profit and loss account. Imputed interest is recognised
in the profit and loss account on a receivable basis.
DEFERRED CAPITAL GRANT
A proportion of the grant-in-aid received from government
is allocated by BW for the purchase of plant, equipment
and vehicles used for waterway operation and

ACQUISITIONS AND GOODWILL
Acquisitions are accounted for under the acquisition
method.
Goodwill arising on acquisitions in the year ended
31 March 1998 and earlier periods was written off to
reserves in accordance with the accounting standard then
in force. Negative goodwill was shown as an unrealised
capital reserve and is credited to realised capital reserves
in the periods expected to benefit. As permitted by the
current accounting standard the goodwill previously written
off to reserves has not been reinstated in the balance
sheet. On disposal or closure of a previously acquired
business, the attributable amount of goodwill previously
written off to reserves is included in determining the profit
or loss on disposal.
Goodwill related to joint ventures and associated
undertakings is included in the carrying value of the
investment.
STOCKS
Stocks are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable
value.
TURNOVER
Turnover income represents amounts receivable for goods
and services provided in the normal course of business,
net of trade discounts and VAT. Contributions to nonstatutory works are recognised on an accruals basis after
all conditions for their receipt have been met.
TAXATION
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all timing
differences that have originated but not reversed at the
balance sheet date where transactions or events that result
in an obligation to pay more tax in the future or a right to
pay less tax in the future have occurred at the balance
sheet date. Timing differences are differences between
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Accounting Policies

BW’s taxable profits and its results as stated in the
financial statements that arise from the inclusion of gains
and losses in tax assessments in periods different from
those in which they are recognised in the financial
statements.
A net deferred tax asset is regarded as recoverable and
therefore recognised only when, on the basis of all
available evidence, it can be regarded as more likely than
not that there will be suitable taxable profits from which
the future reversal of the underlying timing differences
can be deducted.
Deferred tax is not recognised when fixed assets are
revalued unless by the balance sheet date there is a
binding agreement to sell the revalued assets and the gain
or loss expected to arise on sale has been recognised in
the financial statements. Neither is deferred tax recognised
when fixed assets are sold and it is more likely than not
that the taxable gain will be rolled over, being charged to
tax only if and when the replacement assets are sold.
Deferred tax is measured at the average tax rates that are
expected to apply in the periods in which the timing
differences are expected to reverse, based on tax rates
and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax is measured on a
non-discounted basis.
PENSIONS
BW operates a single funded defined benefit scheme for
all staff. Pension costs are charged to the profit and loss
account so as to spread the cost over the employees’
working lives with BW. The regular cost is attributed to
individual years using the projected unit method. Variations
in pension costs which are identified as a result of actuarial
valuations, are amortised over the average expected
remaining working lives of employees in proportion to their
expected payroll costs. Differences between the amounts
funded and the amounts charged to the profit and loss
account are treated as either a provision or prepayment in
the balance sheet. The assets of the pension fund are in a
separate trust to any BW assets.
BW has adopted the transitional arrangements for pension
cost disclosure detailed in FRS17 and has therefore
included the new disclosures within the notes to the
accounts.
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Provisions for an unfunded pension entitlement for the
Chairman and to cover the present value of the future
costs of reduced cost travel benefits are included in the
balance sheet. These provisions for unfunded
arrangements have been calculated in accordance with
FRS17 based on the assumptions set out in note 7 to
these accounts.
FINANCE COSTS
Finance costs of debt are recognised in the profit and loss
account over the term of such loans at a constant rate on
the carrying amount.
DEFERRED INCOME
In 1999/2000 BW received a cash dowry of £17.7 million
to take on obligations to maintain the River Tees navigation
and Tees Barrage which was acquired from the
Commission for the New Towns. This dowry was originally
accounted as a provision in accordance with FRS12
“Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets”.
BW regularly reviews its accounting policies in accordance
with FRS 18 “Accounting policies” and it is felt that
accounting for the dowry as deferred income would be
more appropriate (see Note 25). BW have therefore made
a prior year adjustment in this year’s accounts.
SEGMENTAL DISCLOSURE
For the purpose of Statement of Standard Accounting
Practice No. 25, BW is, in the opinion of its Board
Members, engaged in one class of business.

GROUP PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
as at 31 March 2003
£000
NOTE

Group

BW*

2002/03

2001/02

£000

£000

109,626

Group turnover including joint ventures

-

Less: joint ventures
Turnover

1

109,626

110,979

Government grant

2

81,970

64,637

Total revenue

191,596

175,616

Major repairs and renovations

(83,560)

(81,859)

Staff costs

(57,165)

(52,079)

Other operating charges

(65,973)

(49,426)

(6,200)

(4,130)

Depreciation

1,852

Own work capitalised or charged to major works
Total expenditure
Operating loss

1,940

1a

(211,046)

(185,554)

3

(19,450)

(9,938)

Share of operating profits and losses of associates and joint ventures

1,059

Profit on sale of investment properties

3,771

2,078

-

45,882

Exceptional profit on sale of other property rights
Interest receivable
Interest payable

4

(Loss)/profit for the financial year before taxation

3,592

2,335

(3,626)

(3,807)

(14,654)

Taxation credit/(charge) on losses/(profits)

5

(Loss)/profit for the financial year after taxation
Transfer to realised capital reserve

16

(Loss)/profit transferred to reserves

36,550

4,362

(2,665)

(10,292)

33,885

(8,775)
(19,067)

(5,926)
27,959

STATEMENT OF TOTAL RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES
£000

NOTE

2002/03
£000
(10,292)

16

21,300
(1,881)
9,127

(Loss)/profit for the financial year after taxation
Net increase/(decrease) in revaluation reserve resulting from transfers
between investment and operational properties
Unrealised surplus on revaluation of investment properties
Corporation tax on capital gains
Movement on deferred tax provision on revaluation surpluses
Total gains recognised since last Annual Report

16
5
14

2001/02
£000
33,885
29
15,738
(3,215)
7,400
53,837

NOTE OF HISTORICAL COST PROFITS AND LOSSES
£000

NOTE

(Loss)/profit for the financial year after taxation
Realisation of property revaluation gains of previous years
Corporation tax on capital gains
Historical cost (loss)/profit for the financial year

16
5

2002/03
£000
(10,292)
7,981
(1,881)
(4,192)

2001/02
£000
33,548
14,647
(3,215)
44,980

*GROUP ACCOUNTS HAVE NOT BEEN PREPARED FOR 2001/02. SEE ‘CONSOLIDATION’ ACCOUNTING POLICY ON PAGE 66.
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BALANCE SHEETS
as at 31 March 2003
£000

Group
NOTE

Fixed assets
Tangible assets
Investments in joint ventures:
Share of gross assets
Share of gross liabilities
Goodwill
Investments in associates
Other investments
Total investments
Current assets
Stocks
Debtors
Trade debtors
Other debtors
Prepayments and accrued income
Cash at bank and in hand

8

9

10

11

12

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

FINANCED BY
Reserves
Investment property revaluation reserve
Realised capital reserve
Unrealised capital reserve
Capital contribution
Other reserves
Profit and loss account
Debt
Due to National Loans Fund
G. P. Greener
Chairman
12 June 2003
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BW
2003

2003

2002
Restated

391,600

387,688

358,848

257
4,594
148
4,999
396,599

7,367
7,367
395,055

3,868
3,868
362,716

1,048

1,048

559

20,263
29,488
17,438
67,189
22,692
90,929

20,262
29,481
17,438
67,181
22,616
90,845

11,846
47,008
15,057
73,911
26,860
101,330

14,133
1,432
14,224
16,655
23,058
69,502
21,427
418,026

14,133
1,432
43
14,223
16,661
25,406
71,898
18,947
414,002

3,919
201
85
13,841
27,339
13,566
58,951
42,379
405,095

(16,949)
(13,021)
(14,130)
373,926

(16,871)
(9,221)
(14,130)
373,780

(17,124)
(12,452)
(10,469)
365,050

219,484
127,970
4,100
3,450
10
4,176
359,190

219,481
127,970
4,100
3,450
4,043
359,044

206,150
113,095
4,100
1,850
23,519
348,714

14,736
373,926

14,736
373,780

16,336
365,050

738
(451)
(30)

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year
Trade creditors
Taxation and social security
Amounts owed to group undertakings
Other creditors
Accruals
Deferred income

Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year
Provisions for liabilities and charges
Deferred capital grant

2003

13
14
15

16
16
16
16

17

18

R Evans
Chief Executive

GROUP CASH FLOW STATEMENT
year to 31 March 2003
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

£000

Group
2002/03
£000
£000
(19,450)

Operating loss
Items not involving the flow of cash:
Depreciation
Profit on sale of operational fixed assets
Write down in value of fixed assets
Release of deferred capital grant

6,200
(3)
1,215
(2,153)

BW
2001/02
£000
£000
(9,938)
4,130
(110)
938
(782)

5,259
(14,191)
(Increase)/decrease in stocks
(Increase)/decrease in debtors
Increase/(decrease) in creditors

(489)
(25,831)
12,402

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
NOTE

Net cash outflow from operating activities
Returns from servicing of finance
Interest received
Interest paid
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from servicing of finance

3,429
(2,403)
(4,736)

£000

2001/02
£000
(4,736)

1,333
(2,762)
1,629

(24,683)
13,765
29,926

(1,429)

(18,451)
11,910
15,956
19,008

9
9
9

(141)
(112)
-

9,415

(1,166)
(148)
(253)
(8,872)

15

18

12

RECONCILIATION OF NET CASH FLOW TO MOVEMENT IN NET FUNDS (NOTE 12)

(Decrease)/increase in cash in the period
Repayment of loans to National Loans Fund
Change in net debt from cash flows during period
Net funds at 1 April
Net funds at 31 March

2002/03
£000
£000
(29,256)
4,265
(2,636)

Capital expenditure and financial investment
Payments to acquire fixed assets
Receipts from sale of fixed assets
Receipts from sale of other property rights
Net cash inflow from capital expenditure and financial investment

(Decrease)/increase in cash

843
13,032
(10,446)
(13,918)
(1,147)
(29,256)

Decrease in provisions
Net cash outflow from operating activities

Acquisitions
Investments in joint ventures and associated undertakings
Purchase of subsidiaries
Purchase of other investments
Net cash outflow from acquisitions
Net cash (outflow)/inflow before financing
Financing
Capital grant in respect of fixed assets
Capital contribution from Defra
Repayment of loans to National Loans Fund
Net cash inflow from financing

4,176
(5,762)

4,641
1,600
(1,600)

(1,314)
1,936
4,000
400
(400)

4,641

4,000

(4,231)

5,936

2002/03
£000
£000
(4,231)
1,600
(2,631)
10,587
7,956

2001/02
£000
£000
5,936
400
6,336
4,188
10,524
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

1. SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS OF CONTINUING OPERATIONS
a) BW Group analysis
2002/03

TOTAL
REVENUE

British Waterways Board

191,596

(LOSS)/PROFIT
OPERATING (LOSS)/PROFIT TRANSFERRED
COSTS
BEFORE TAX TO RESERVES

211,085

(15,418)

(39)

NET ASSETS AT
31 MARCH

(19,476)

(1)

373,780

Property related subsidiaries

-

1

Joint venture undertakings

-

-

Associated undertakings

-

-

191,596

211,046

(14,654)

(19,067)

373,926

175,616

185,554

36,550

27,959

365,050

(587)

3

(498)

(589)

906

732

1,352

2001/02
British Waterways Board

b) Analysis of BW direct income and expenditure (excludes group undertakings)
NOT FULLY
MULTIPLE USE
WATERWAYS

LEISURE USE
WATERWAYS

NAVIGABLE
WATERWAYS

TOTAL

02/03

01/02

02/03

01/02

02/03 01/02

£000

£000

£000

£000

Rents from investment properties

6,454

6,150

12,672

11,856

269

444

19,395 18,450

Other rents, wayleaves, licences and easements

6,297

4,529

18,186

12,197

2,176

553

26,659 17,279

12,751

10,679

30,858 24,053

2,445

997

46,054 35,729

2,064

2,143

12,210

11,221

3

36

14,277 13,400

525

1,011

3,264

3,251

30

49

3,819

4,311

£000

£000

02/03

01/02

£000

£000

Income from property

Income from leisure uses
Craft licences and moorings
Rents receivable
Retail

64

70

3,019

1,412

-

-

3,083

1,482

Angling

72

75

658

574

31

35

761

684

2,725

3,299

19,151 16,458

64

120

Water charges

1,420

1,651

2,196

2,213

137

274

3,753

4,138

Tolls and dues

696

751

-

-

-

-

696

751

2,116

2,402

2,196

2,213

137

274

4,449

4,889

21,940 19,877

Income from commercial uses

Income from other uses
Contributions to non-statutory works

2,334

664

14,150

14,773

11,382

27,582

Other income

2,046

2,313

4,932

3,338

444

767

1,778

735

21

213

Maintenance agreements

Total direct income

96

99

4,476

3,076

22,068 19,456
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7,422

6,418

1,895

1,047

20,860 18,846

11,847 28,562

37,183 50,484

73,065

14,493 29,953

109,626 110,979

61,570

81,970 64,637

Government grant
Total revenue

27,866 43,019

22,068 19,456

73,065

61,570

14,493 29,953

191,596 175,616

b) Analysis of BW direct income and expenditure (excludes group undertakings)
NOT FULLY
MULTIPLE USE

LEISURE USE

NAVIGABLE

WATERWAYS

WATERWAYS

WATERWAYS

02/03

01/02

02/03

01/02

£000

£000

£000

£000

12,852

7,408

02/03 01/02
£000

£000

TOTAL

02/03

01/02

£000

£000

Expenditure
Major repairs and renovations

57,243 39,151

13,465 35,300

83,560 81,859

Staff costs

13,376 12,149

37,511

31,294

6,278

8,636

57,165 52,079

Other operating charges

14,231 11,882

47,747

33,473

3,945

4,071

65,923 49,426

4,274

2,656

471

462

(98)

(504)

1,455

Depreciation

1,012

(717)

Own work capitalised or charged

(1,037)

(671)

(765)

6,200

4,130

(1,852) (1,940)

to major works
Total expenditure

41,197

Waterway lengths

31,780

145,738 105,809 24,061

566 km

2,433 km

47,965

318 km

210,996 185,554
3,317 km

The following waterways have been categorised as multiple use waterways:
Aire & Calder Navigation

New Junction Canal

Tees Navigation

Caledonian Canal

River Ouse

South Yorkshire Navigation

Crinan Canal

River Trent

Weaver Navigation

Gloucester & Sharpness Canal

River Severn

The following waterways have been categorised as not fully navigable waterways:
Cromford Canal

Pocklington Canal

St. Helens Canal

Grantham Canal

Ribble Link (2001/02)

Swansea Canal

Manchester, Bolton & Bury Canal

Rochdale Canal (2001/02)

Montgomery Canal

Scottish Lowland canals (2001/02)

All other waterways have been categorised as leisure waterways.
The categorisation of waterways used in this analysis does not affect British Waterways' obligations set out in the 1968 Transport Act.
The majority of income and expenditure, including major repairs and renovations, can be directly attributed to waterway categories.
Remaining income and expenditure is apportioned between waterway categories in the above analysis.
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Notes to the accounts

2. GRANTS RECEIVABLE FROM CENTRAL GOVERNMENT
2002/03

2001/02

£000

£000

71,580

61,455

Grant receivable from Defra
Grant received in year

-

Accrued grant at 1 April
Allocated to deferred capital grant

(2,200)

71,580

59,255

(4,400)

(4,000)

2,153

782

69,333

56,037

Grant received in year

9,459

8,600

Accrued grant at 31 March

4,351

-

13,810

8,600

Deferred capital grant released to profit and loss account

Grant receivable from Scottish Executive

Allocated to deferred capital grant

Total revenue grant accrued during the year

(1,173)

-

12,637

8,600

81,970

64,637

Grant received on 1 April, for expenditure incurred but not paid before 31 March, is accrued in these accounts.
Government Resource Accounting Budget
During the year resource Departmental Expenditure Limit (DEL), capital DEL and resource annually managed expenditure budget
limits set by Defra have not been exceeded.

3. OPERATING LOSS
2002/03

2001/02

£000

£000

6,200

4,130

This is stated after charging:
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
Profit on sale of operational fixed assets
Rents on leased properties
Auditors’ remuneration

– audit services

(110)

868

915

114

98

15

19

Board Members’ emoluments (Note 6)

169

153

Inland Waterways Amenity Advisory Council expenses

132

147

– non audit services

The audit fee for BW was £110,000.
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4. INTEREST PAYABLE
Group

BW

2002/03

2001/02

£000

£000

Interest on loans from Defra under Section 19 of the Transport Act 1962

1,067

909

Unwinding of discount

1,091

1,073

744

815

2,902

2,797

724

1,010

3,626

3,807

Interest payable on sums wholly repayable within five years:

Other short-term interest
Interest payable on all other loans:
Interest on loans from Defra under Section 19
of the Transport Act 1962
Total interest payable

5. TAXATION
A provision of £0.7 million (2002: £4.3 million) has been held for current and previous year corporation tax liabilities which have
arisen on trading account and capital gains.
Group
BW
2002/03
2001/02
(Credited)/charged to profit and loss account:
Corporation tax
– Credit for current year losses available to carry back
(7,070)
– Provision required for capital gains in the current year
1,505
2,815
– Adjustments in respect of prior years
510
(150)
(5,055)
2,665
Deferred tax
– Provision required for current year
693
(4,362)
2,665
Charged/(credited) to reserves:
– Provision required for capital gains in the current year
2,432
4,274
– Adjustments in respect of prior years
(551)
(1,059)
1,881
3,215
Deferred tax
– Adjustments in respect of prior years
(7,400)
1,881
(4,185)
The provision credited to the profit and loss account for the current year is higher than the standard rate of corporation tax in the
UK (30%). The differences are explained below:
Loss for the financial year before taxation
Corporation tax at 30%

(14,654)

36,550

(4,396)

10,965

498
(1,795)
128
510
(659)
(5,055)

1,798
(316)
(9,632)
(150)
(8,300)
2,665

Effects of:
– Expenses not deductible for tax purposes
– Timing differences not recognised
– Tax basis and indexation on asset disposal
– Adjustments in respect of prior years
(Credit)/charge for corporation tax
Trading tax losses carried forward at 31 March 2003 amounted to £4.3 million (2002: £5.9 million).
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Deferred tax
The movement on the provision for deferred tax in the year is set out in note 14 to the accounts.
No liability has been provided for deferred tax on gains recognised on revaluing property to its market value or on the sale of
properties where potentially taxable gains have been rolled over into replacement assets. Such tax would become payable only if the
property were sold without it being possible to claim rollover relief. The total amount unprovided is £70 million (£60 million for
revalued properties, £10 million for rolled over gains). At present, it is not envisaged that any tax will become payable in the
foreseeable future.

6. BOARD MEMBERS’ EMOLUMENTS
Basic remuneration
Fees

2002/03

2001/02

£000

£000

£000

George Greener, Chairman

67

67

65

Sir Peter Soulsby, Vice Chairman

14

14

13

Susan Achmatowicz

10

10

5

Campbell Christie

10

10

10

Ian Darling

10

10

10

George Fleming

10

10

5

Helen Gordon

10

10

10

Derek Langslow

10

10

10

Janet Lewis-Jones

10

10

5

Adeeba Malik

10

10

5

Terry Tricker

10

10

5

-

-

5

Carolan Dobson (retired September 2001)
Paul King (retired September 2001)

-

-

5

171

171

153

The Board Members' appointment and remuneration is determined by the Secretary of State for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs.
No Board Member receives a benefit-in-kind.
Further details in relation to Board Members' remuneration can be found in the Directors Remuneration Report on pages 58 to 61.
The Chairman's pension entitlement is calculated by analogy to the British Waterways (1990) Pension Fund. The increase in the
provision required for the year is calculated by a qualified actuary using the discount rates consistent with those required under
FRS17 as shown in note 7 to these accounts.
The Chairman, George Greener, had accrued entitlements under this defined benefit arrangement as follows:
£p.a.
Accrued pension at 1 April 2002
Indexation on accrued pension at 1 April 2002

49

Accrued pension during the year

1,019

Accrued pension at 31 March 2003

3,939

Transfer value of increase after indexation is £15,800
The Chairman contributed £3,593 to the scheme during the year.
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7. EMPLOYEE COSTS
There are no direct employees within BW’s wholly owned subsidiaries. The following analysis relates to BW:
a The average number of persons (excluding Board Members) employed during the year was:
2002/03

2001/02

Number

Number

Total employed

2,191

2,063

Full-time equivalent

2,147

2,016

b Total employment costs (excluding Board Members’ emoluments stated in Note 6 to these Accounts) were:
2002/03

2001/02

£000

£000

Wages and salaries

47,722

43,283

Social security costs

3,506

3,334

Pension costs

5,937

5,462

57,165

52,079

Total employment costs
c Senior employee emoluments

The number of senior employees whose emoluments, including the taxable value of benefits-in-kind, but excluding employer's
pension contributions and payments on leaving service, were within the following ranges:
£

2002/03

2001/02

Number

Number

60,000

21

17

-

70,000

8

6

-

80,000

2

1

80,001

-

90,000

1

6

90,001

- 100,000

3

2

100,001

- 110,000

1

2

120,001

- 130,000

3

2

130,001

- 140,000

1

-

140,001

- 150,000

1

-

50,000

-

60,001
70,001

150,001

- 160,000

1

-

160,001

-

170,000

2

-

170,001

- 180,000

-

1

d Pension Scheme
BW operates a single funded defined benefit pension scheme for all staff. Contributions to the Scheme are determined with the
advice of independent professionally qualified actuaries on the basis of a triennial valuation using the projected unit method.
The most recent valuation was conducted as at 31 March 2001 using the following main financial assumptions:
Rate of return on existing assets

5.0%

Rate of return on future contributions

6.25%

Rate of salary and wage increases

4.0%

Rate of pension increases

2.5%

The market value of the Scheme’s assets (excluding members’ additional voluntary contributions) at 31 March 2001 amounted to
£200.5 million and the value placed upon the benefits that had accrued to members, after allowing for the effect of future increases
in their earnings, was £203.4 million. The Scheme was therefore 99% funded on an ongoing basis. On the solvency basis prescribed
by the statutory Minimum Funding Requirement, the Scheme’s assets were 115% of accrued liabilities.
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The employer contribution rate was reviewed by the Scheme actuary as part of the valuation, and the recommended rate remained
stable at 16% of pensionable pay. This included an allowance of 0.8% towards administrative expenses, 1% towards the cost of
extra benefits under the voluntary early retirement arrangements, and 1.1% to raise the ongoing funding level to 100% within six
years if the adopted assumptions were borne out in practice. The voluntary early retirement scheme closed at 31 March 2003 and
the ongoing employer contribution rate reduced by 1% to 15% for 2003/04.
FRS17 Retirement benefits
The Accounting Standards Board has announced a deferral of full mandatory adoption of FRS17 following the notification of
intention by the International Accounting Standards Board that it is to review IAS19, the present international standard for post
employment benefits. Instead the transitional disclosure requirements will continue.
The valuation of the Scheme used for FRS17 disclosures has been based on the most recent actuarial valuation of BW's scheme
at 31 March 2001 and updated to 31 March 2003 by an independent qualified actuary and takes into account the transitional
requirements of FRS17.
The present value of the scheme liabilities was calculated in accordance with FRS17 using the following assumptions:
As at 31 March
2002/03
2001/02
Rate of inflation
2.5%
2.5%
Rate of increase in salaries
4.0%
4.0%
Rate of increase for pensions in payment and deferred pensions
2.5%
2.5%
Rate used to discount scheme liabilities
5.4%
6.0%
The assets in the scheme at 31 March 2003 and the expected future rates of return on them were:

Equities
Bonds
Cash
Total fair value of assets
Present value of scheme liabilities
(Deficit) surplus in the scheme
Related deferred tax (asset)/liability
Net pension (liability)/asset

31 March 2003
£ million
%
104.4
7.5%
46.5
5.0%
3.0
3.75%
153.9
221.7
(67.8)
(20.3)
(47.5)

31 March 2002
£ million
%
152.4
6.1%
29.2
5.3%
11.8
4.0%
193.4
188.0
5.4
1.6
3.8

If FRS17 had been adopted in the financial statements, the Group's net assets and profit and loss reserve at 31 March 2003
would be as follows:
Net assets
Net assets excluding pension asset
Pension (liability)/asset
Net assets including pension (liability)/assets

Reserves
Profit and Loss account reserve excluding pension (liability)/asset
Pension reserve
Profit and loss account reserve
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31 March 2003
£ million
£ million
418.0
405.1
(47.5)
3.8
370.5
408.9

31 March 2003
£ million
£ million
4.2
23.5
(47.5)
3.8
(43.3)
27.3

If FRS17 had been adopted in the financial statements, the following amounts would have been recognised in the performance
statements for the financial year to 31 March 2003: .
Amounts (charged)/credited to the profit and loss account
Current service cost
Past service costs
Total charged to operating profit

£ million
(6.3)
(1.5)
(7.8)

The amount credited / (charged) to other finance income
Interest on scheme liabilities
Expected return on scheme assets
Net credit to other finance income
Total charged to profit and loss account before deduction of tax
Amounts recognised in the Statement of Recognised Gains and Losses (STRGL)
Loss on assets
Experience gain on liabilities
Loss on change of assumptions (financial and demographic)
Total loss recognised in STRGL before adjustment for tax

11.3
(11.5)
(0.2)
(7.6)
£ million
52.0
(0.1)
21.2
73.1

History of experience gains and losses (current period only)
Loss on scheme assets
amount
% of scheme assets at end of year
Experience gain on scheme liabilities
amount
% of scheme liabilities at end of year
Total actuarial loss recognised in STRGL
amount
% of scheme liabilities at end of year
Movement in surplus/(deficit) in the Scheme during the year
Surplus in the scheme at 1 April 2002
Contributions paid
Current service cost
Past service cost
Other finance income
Actuarial loss
Deficit in the scheme at end of year before tax

£52.0m
33.8%
£(0.1)m
0.0%
£73.1m
33.0%
£ million
5.4
7.5
(6.3)
(1.5)
0.2
(73.1)
(67.8)

Provisions in respect of unfunded pension arrangements (see notes 6 and 14) have been calculated using the discount rates
shown above and therefore are consistent with FRS17.
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8. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Group

FREEHOLD LAND

LEASEHOLD

CRAFT, PLANT AND

BUILDINGS AND STRUCTURES

LAND AND BUILDINGS

EQUIPMENT

Operational

Investment

Owned

Leased

Total

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

56,009

1,020

48,124

1,002

399,411

58

-

8,656

Operational Investment

Cost or valuation
At 1 April 2002

291,880

1,376

Transfers

(1,070)

1,126

-

Additions

6,351

6,678

1,525

Reduction in value

(195)

-

(250)

(283)
-

(169)

-

23,210

-

(770)

-

(1,215)

(2,100)

Disposals

-

(8,046)

-

-

-

(10,146)

Revaluation

-

25,214

-

10

-

-

25,224

61,095

316,852

2,651

747

53,968

1,002

436,315

14,690

-

111

-

24,760

1,002

40,563

-

-

-

-

-

1,130

-

26

-

5,044

-

6,200

-

-

-

-

(1,879)

-

(1,879)

15,651

-

137

-

27,925

1,002

44,715

At 31 March 2003

45,444

316,852

2,514

746

26,043

-

391,600

At 31 March 2002

41,319

291,880

1,265

1,020

23,364

-

358,848

At 31 March 2003
Depreciation
At 1 April 2002
Transfers

(169)

Provision for year
Disposals
At 31 March 2003

(169)

Net book value

BW

FREEHOLD LAND

LEASEHOLD

CRAFT, PLANT AND

BUILDINGS AND STRUCTURES

LAND AND BUILDINGS

EQUIPMENT

Operational

Investment

£000

£000

£000

56,009

291,880

1,376

Owned

Leased

Total

£000

£000

£000

£000

1,020

48,124

1,002

399,411

Operational Investment

Cost or valuation
At 1 April 2002
Transfers

(1,070)

1,126

-

Additions

6,351

6,678

1,525

Reduction in value

(195)

-

(250)

(283)
-

58

-

8,656

-

23,210

(169)

-

(770)

-

(1,215)

(2,100)

Disposals

-

(8,046)

-

-

-

(10,146)

Revaluation

-

21,302

-

10

-

-

21,312

61,095

312,940

2,651

747

53,968

1,002

432,403

14,690

-

111

-

24,760

1,002

40,563

-

-

-

-

-

1,130

-

26

-

5,044

-

6,200

-

-

-

-

(1,879)

-

(1,879)

15,651

-

137

-

27,925

1,002

44,715

At 31 March 2003

45,444

312,940

2,514

747

26,043

-

387,688

At 31 March 2002

41,319

291,880

1,265

1,020

23,364

-

358,848

At 31 March 2003
Depreciation
At 1 April 2002
Transfers
Provision for year
Disposals
At 31 March 2003

(169)

(169)

Net book value
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The value of fixed assets includes assets in the course of construction valued at £6.4 million (2002: £8.3 million).
The surplus on revaluation at 31 March comprises:
Increase in net revaluation from transfers between
investment and operational properties
Surplus on revaluation of investment properties

The net book value of investment properties at 31 March comprises:
The surplus on revaluation at 31 March comprises:
Cost
Revaluation surpluses

Group
2002/03
£000

2002/03
£000

BW
2001/02
£000

25,224
25,224

21,312
21,312

29
15,723
15,752

2002/03
£000
94,315
223,284
317,599

2002/03
£000
94,206
219,481
313,687

2001/02
£000
86,750
206,150
292,900

Depreciation
Any differences between physical assets and asset registers identified as a result of the organisation’s continuous programme of
asset verification are treated as adjustments in the fixed asset statements, in the year in which identified.
In accordance with Statement of Standard Accounting Practice No. 19, depreciation is not provided on investment properties.
This is a departure from the requirements of the Companies Act 1985. In the opinion of the Board Members, this departure is
required in order to show a true and fair view in these accounts.
Investment properties
Investment properties were revalued at 31 December 2002 on an open market value basis by Gerald Eve, Chartered Surveyors.
Based upon these valuations, British Waterways has incorporated a value of investment properties of £317 million in these accounts.
The value of investment properties includes properties valued at £36.1 million (2002: £13.9 million) that are held for disposal.
In the event that the investment properties were to be sold for their revalued amount, tax on such disposals would be approximately
£61 million (2001/02 : £57 million).
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9. INVESTMENTS
Group

BW

2002/03

2002/03

2001/02

£000

£000

£000

At 1 April

-

1,068

1,215

Additions in year

-

253

Disposals in year

-

At 31 March

-

1,316

1,068

At 1 April

-

2,652

1,339

Additions in year

-

4,564

1,313

Shares in group undertakings

(5)

1
(148)

Loans to group undertakings

(1,313)

Repayments in year
At 31 March

-

-

5,903

2,652

287

-

-

Interests in joint ventures (see Note 9b below)
Additions

– net assets
– goodwill

At 31 March

(30)

-

-

257

-

-

2,591

-

-

549

-

-

3,140

-

-

Interests in associates (see Note 9b below)
At 1 April

– net assets
– goodwill
– net assets

1,453

-

-

At 31 March – net assets

4,045

-

-

Additions

– goodwill

549

-

-

4,594

-

-

148

148

-

-

-

148

148

148

148

4,999

7,367

3,868

Other investments
At 1 April
Additions in year
At 31 March
Total fixed asset investments
a Subsidiary undertakings
BW’s principal subsidiary undertakings are as follows:
– British Waterways Pension Trustees Ltd acts as trustee to the British Waterways 1990 Pension Fund. The book value of BW’s
interest is represented by a debt of equal amount due to the subsidiary and both have been eliminated from BW’s accounts.
– Wood Wharf Management Company Ltd manages property in London Docklands.
– Blackwall Estates Ltd was acquired during 2002/03 from Port of London Properties and manages property in London Docklands
(see Note 22)
The following companies did not trade during the year:
– Limehouse Developments Ltd
– Waterscape Limited
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b Investments joint ventures & associated undertakings
The following information relates to those joint ventures and associated undertakings of the Group at the year end whose results or
financial position, in the opinion of the directors, principally affect the figures of the Group. All joint ventures and associated
undertakings of the Group are unlisted and are registered and operate in the United Kingdom.
ACCOUNTING

ISSUED

EQUITY

PERIOD END

SHARE

INTEREST

DATE

CAPITAL

HELD

£

%

MAIN ACTIVITY

Joint ventures
Isis Waterside Regeneration Limited Partnership

31 December 2002

9,900

50%

Property

Watergrid Ltd

31 December 2002

300,000

45%

Water supply

Associated undertakings
Leeds Canal Basin (Developments) Ltd

31March 2003

1,021,684

49

Property

Nottingham Waterside Ltd

31 December 2002

1,000

49

Property

Paddington Business Barges

31 December 2002

1,000

49

Office development

Waterwise UK Ltd

31 December 2002

1,000

49

Water safety

West India Quay Management Company Ltd

30 June 2002

1,000

12

Property

City Road Basin Ltd

31 December 2002

100

49

Property

Edinburgh Quay Ltd

31 December 2002

100

49

Property

31March 2003

100

49

Property

31 December 2002

100

49

Property

30 April 2002

90

49

Leisure

Granary Wharf Ltd
H2O Urban Ltd
Euro-waterways Ltd

Goodwill arises from BW’s investments in Leeds Canal Basin Ltd (£549,000) and Watergrid Ltd (£30,000), and the Directors have
performed an impairment review and no amortisation is required.
c Other investments
BW has an investment of £147,500 in Easynet Group plc. Easynet Group plc and subsidiaries provide Internet access, computer
networking hardware, software, peripherals and consultancy services to customers in the UK and Europe.

10. STOCKS
Group and BW

BW

31 March 2003

31 March 2002

£000

£000

Raw materials and consumables

382

178

Held for resale

666

381

1,048

559

11. OTHER DEBTORS
Group

BW

31 March 2003
Deferred consideration sale agreements

31 March 2003

31 March 2002

£000

£000

£000

16,251

16,251

42,648

Value added tax

6,715

6,715

1,210

Others

6,522

6,515

3,150

29,488

29,481

47,008

Of the deferred consideration sale agreements £10.9 million (2002: £10.1 million) will fall due after more than one year.
Of the others, £0.1 million (2002: £0.1 million) will fall due after more than one year.
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12. ANALYSIS OF NET FUNDS
Group

1 APRIL

CASH

31 MARCH

2002

FLOWS

2003

£000
Cash at bank and in hand

£000

26,923

(4,231)

– due within one year

(1,600)

1,600

– due after one year

(14,736)

£000
22,692

Capital debt (Note 18)
-

-

(14,736)

Totals

10,587

BW

1 APRIL

CASH

31 MARCH

2002

FLOWS

2003

£000
Cash at bank and in hand

(2,631)

7,956

£000

26,860

(4,244)

– due within one year

(1,600)

1,600

– due after one year

(14,736)

£000
22,616

Capital debt (Note 18)

Totals

10,524

-

-

(14,736)

(2,644)

7,880

13. CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR
Group

BW
Restated

31 March

Deferred income (see below)
Other creditors

31 March

31 March

2003

2003

2002

£000

£000

£000

16,871

16,871

17,124

78

-

-

16,949

16,871

17,124

The balance on creditors falling due after more than one year includes deferred income arising from the receipt of a cash dowry
received in respect of obligations to maintain the River Tees navigation and Tees Barrage which was acquired from the Commission
for the New Towns in the year ended 31 March 2000 (See Note 25). Movements during the year were as follows:
Balance at 1 April 2002
Amounts falling due within one year
Amounts falling due after more than one year

762
17,124
17,886

Unwinding of discount

1,073
18,959

Reduction due to re-assessment of outstanding liability

(333)

Payments

(762)

Balance at 31 March 2003

17,864

Balance at 31 March 2003 analysed as follows:
Amounts falling due within one year
Amounts falling due after more than one year

993
16,871
17,864
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14. PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES
Group

BW

31 March

31 March

31 March

2003

2003

2002

£000

£000

£000

Maintenance of Tees navigation:
Balance at 1 April 2002

-

-

17,886

Prior year adjustment (see note 25)

-

-

(17,886)

-

-

-

Corporation tax

735

735

4,257

Deferred taxation

693

693

-

57

57

38

Chairman's pension costs

367

367

441

11,169

7,369

7,716

13,021

9,221

12,452

Other post retirement benefits
Other provisions

Corporation tax
A provision has been made for current and previous year corporation tax liabilities on trading profits and capital gains. Additional
disclosure is made in note 5 to these accounts. Movements during the year were as follows:
Group and BW
£000
Balance at 1 April 2002

4,257

Reduction during the year

(3,530)
727

Net repayment of tax during the year

8

Balance at 31 March 2003

735

Deferred taxation
The potential deferred tax asset (see table below) arising from losses in excess of the amount that can be offset from deferred tax
liabilities in respect of accelerated capital allowances and short term timing differences is not recognised as BW cannot reasonably
foresee when they will be utilised. Neither is deferred tax recognised on fixed assets which have been sold and it is more likely than
not that the taxable gain will be rolled over, being charged to tax only if and when the replacement assets are sold.
Group and BW
Recognised

Accelerated Capital Allowances
Short Term Timing Differences
Losses
Potential deferred tax
Rolled over gains

Not recognised

2002/03

2001/02

2002/03

2001/02

£000

£000

£000

£000

549

699

-

-

1,448

188

-

-

(1,304)

(887)

-

(838)

-

(838)

693

-

9,891

8,740
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Chairman’s pension costs
An unfunded pension entitlement has been arranged for the Chairman. A provision is included in the balance sheet to cover this
liability and has been calculated using discount rates consistent with those required under FRS17 as shown in note 7 to these
accounts. Movements during the year were as follows:
Group and BW
£000
Balance at 1 April 2002

38

Increase required during the year

19

Balance at 31 March 2003

57

Other post retirement benefits
Under the terms of the 1962 Transport Act, employees transferring from the British Transport Commission to successor bodies were
entitled to retain their reduced cost travel benefits. Successor bodies, including BW, were made responsible for procuring the benefits
on their behalf.
Currently 8 BW employees and 317 pensioners retain entitlement to this benefit. A provision to cover the present value of the future
cost of these benefits is included in the balance sheet.
The provision was re-assessed at 31 March 2003 by independent qualified actuaries using discount rates consistent with those
required under FRS17 as shown in note 7 to these accounts. Movements during the year were as follows:
Group and BW
£000
Balance at 1 April 2002

441

Interest credited

18
459

Effect of re-assessment

(68)

Benefits paid

(24)

Balance at 31 March 2003

367

Other provisions
The other provisions relate principally to third party claims and a provision arising from leasehold properties previously occupied by
BW. The movements during the year were as follows:
Group

BW

£000

£000

Balance at 1 April 2002

7,716

7,716

Increase during the year

4,584

784

12,300
Payments
Balance at 31 March 2003
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(1,131)
11,169

8,500
(1,131)
7,369

15. DEFERRED CAPITAL GRANT
Group and BW
2002/03

2001/02

£000

£000

10,469

7,251

Defra Grant allocated to capital

4,400

4,000

Scottish Executive Grant allocated to capital

1,173

-

241

-

16,283

11,251

Balance at 1 April

Other deferred capital grants
Released to profit and loss account

(2,153)

Balance at 31 March

14,130

(782)
10,469

16. RESERVES
INVESTMENT
REALISED

PROPERTY

CAPITAL

REVALUATION

UNREALISED
CAPITAL

RESERVE

RESERVE

RESERVE

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

113,095

206,150

4,100

1,850

-

-

-

-

CAPITAL

OTHER

CONTRIBUTION RESERVES

British Waterways
Balance at 1 April 2002
Realisation of property revaluation gains of previous years
Corporation tax on capital gains of previous years
Unrealised surplus on revaluation of investment properties

7,981
(1,881)

(7,981)
-

-

-

-

-

21,312

-

-

-

3,771

-

-

-

-

287

-

-

-

-

Transfer of profit on sale of investment properties from
profit and loss account
Transfer of other property profits from profit
and loss account
Corporation tax on capital gains in current year
Increase in provision for deferred taxation on property gains
Capital contribution from Defra

5,410
(693)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,600

-

127,970

219,481

4,100

3,450

-

Balance at 1 April 2002

-

15

-

-

-

Unrealised deficit on revaluation of investment properties

-

(12)

-

Balance at 31 March 2003

-

3

-

-

10

127,970

219,484

4,100

3,450

10

Balance at 31 March 2003
Group share of reserves in associated undertakings

Total Group

10

The realised capital reserve includes the value of profits on valuation arising from the sale of property and other property rights and
the realisation of property revaluation gains of previous years, net of corporation tax. The investment property revaluation reserve
includes unrealised gains on property valuation. The unrealised capital reserve includes the value of the excess of the fair value of
assets acquired on acquisition of a business over the fair value of the consideration received. Capital contributions are from Defra to
enable BW to repay National Loans Fund loans maturing before 2013 as they mature (see note 18).
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17. PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
Group

BW

2002/03

2002/03

2001/02

£000

£000

£000

23,244

Balance at 1 April

(19,067)

(Loss)/Profit transferred to reserves
Balance at 31 March

23,519

(4,440)

(19,476)

27,959

4,043

23,519

4,176

18. AMOUNTS DUE TO NATIONAL LOANS FUND
Group and BW
31 March

31 March

2003

2002

£000

£000

Loans are repayable as follows:
-

1,600

Between one and two years

600

-

Between two and five years

6,272

4,824

In greater than five years

7,864

9,912

14,736

16,336

In one year or less

Total
Details of individual loans:
MATURITY DATE

RATE OF
INTEREST %

2 Oct 2004
2 Apr 2005
2 Apr 2005
2 Apr 2005
2 Oct 2005
2 Oct 2005
2 Apr 2006
2 Apr 2007

15 1/4
14
14 5/8
14 1/8
13 3/8
13 1/2
14 1/4
15 1/8

AMOUNT

MATURITY DATE

£000

600
640
704
640
960
640
640
384

RATE OF
INTEREST %

2 Apr 2007
2 Oct 2007
2 Apr 2008
2 Apr 2008
2 Apr 2009
2 Apr 2010
2 Apr 2010
2 Apr 2011

13 3/4
13 5/8
12 1/8
11
10 1/4
11 1/8
10 7/8
9 1/4

AMOUNT

MATURITY DATE

£000

1,344
320
256
768
896
576
128
288

RATE OF
INTEREST %

2 Apr 2012
2 Apr 2012
2 Oct 2012
2 Apr 2020
2 Apr 2021
2 Apr 2022
2 Apr 2023
2 Apr 2024

10 1/4
9
9 1/2
8 5/8
8 1/2
7 3/4
5 7/8
5

The government has decided to make capital contributions to BW to enable BW to repay those loans maturing before 2013
(£11.6 million) as they mature, thus removing from BW the need to take out new loans to repay them.
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AMOUNT
£000

640
448
714
1,000
1,000
250
250
650

31 March
Borrowing authorised by Defra
Amount of debt due to National Loans Fund
Bank overdraft facility
Borrowing authorised by Defra

31 March

2003

2002

£000

£000

14,736

16,336

3,000

3,000

17,736

19,336

31 March

31 March

The bank overdraft facility is guaranteed by H.M. Treasury annually.
Analysis of changes in financing during the year
2003

2002

£000

£000

At 1 April

16,336

16,736

Loans repaid

(1,600)

Capital debt

Loans taken out
At 31 March

(400)

-

-

14,736

16,336

19. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
All capital commitments arise within BW. Capital expenditure for which BW had contracted at 31 March 2003 was £4,424,000
(2002: £3,747,000).

20. OPERATING LEASES
At 31 March 2003 the minimum lease payments due in the following year under operating leases to which the Group was committed
were as follows:
Land and buildings
31 March

31 March

Other operating leases
31 March

31 March

2003

2002

2003

2002

£000

£000

£000

£000

50

65

163

248

Leases due to expire:
Within one year
Within two to five years

187

94

1,843

1,605

In greater than five years

750

769

50

1

987

928

2,056

1,854

All lease commitments arise within BW.
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21. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
During the year, BW entered into a number of transactions with related parties in the normal course of business and on an
arm's-length basis. The names of these parties, the nature of these transactions and their total value is shown below.
BW policy is to appoint Directors and senior members of staff to the Board of all group undertakings and other key partners to
ensure that BW's interests are properly represented.
There are no further related party transactions arising within BW's wholly owned subsidiaries.
AMOUNT RECEIVABLE/
(PAYABLE) DURING THE YEAR

AMOUNT
OUTSTANDING AT
31 MARCH 2003

£000

£000

795

188

90

90

Transactions with the Environment Agency which is under the control of BW’s
sponsoring government department, Defra
– Contribution to works and the Boat Safety Scheme
Transactions with the Countryside Agency which is under the control of BW’s
sponsoring government department, Defra
– Contribution to works
Transactions with the Waterways Trust, a registered charity of which Sir Peter Soulsby
(Board Member), Dave Fletcher (Chief Executive retired 12 December, 2002),
Simon Salem (Director) and Chris Mitchell (Regional Director, Southern) are trustees.
– Fees paid for fundraising, archiving and support services

(1,483)

– Contribution to restoration works

10,704

(343)
2,314

Transactions with the Millennium Link Trust a charitable company limited by guarantee
of which Jim Stirling (Director, Scotland) and Ken Aylmer
(Chief Accountant, retired 31 March 2003) are directors.
– Rent receivable
– Rent payable

75

63

(75)

(63)

Transactions with the Heritage Lottery Fund, a non-departmental public body of which
Derek Langslow (Board Member) was appointed as a trustee in February 2002.
– Contribution to restoration works

1,397

445

6,525

-

4,615

-

Transactions with Easynet Group plc in which Dave Fletcher
(Chief Executive – retired 12 December 2002) was a Director. BW also own
a 3% shareholding in this company.
– contract for fibre optics along the towpath
Transactions with Ultramast Ltd in which Robin Evans (Commercial Director until December 2002)
was a Director up to 19 December 2002.
– contract for provision of mobile phone masts
Loans to associate and subsidiary companies (see note 9) are as follows:
1 APRIL

MOVEMENTS

31 MARCH

£000

£000

2002

£000
Edinburgh Quay Ltd

1,339

1,356

2,695

-

3,098

3,098

H2O Urban Ltd

-

60

60

Paddington Basin Business Barges Ltd

-

50

50

ISIS

90

2003

City Road Basin Ltd

1,313

(1,313)

Total

2,652

3,251
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5,903

22. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESS
On 17 January 2003 BW acquired Blackwall Estates Ltd. from Port of London Properties.
The following table sets out the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities to BW as at the date of acquisition:
£000
Purchase price

112

Tangible fixed assets acquired

(112)
-

BW has issued a guarantee to its subsidiary company.

23. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
a) Business reorganisation
In May 2003 BW announced changes to BW’s organisation and structure aimed at improving customer and visitor service and
increasing business efficiency and focus. These involve replacing the current regions and waterways with ten new waterway
business units, each fully resourced with the people and skills needed for all aspects of their operations.
With the exception of several redundancies known before the year end to be taking place, costs associated with these organisational
changes are not reflected in this year's accounts.
b) Liverpool Docks
BW is currently negotiating with English Partnerships to acquire the title to and management responsibility for 75 acres of water
space and other assets associated with the South Docks, Liverpool and Morpeth Docks, Birkenhead. This transaction had not taken
place at the balance sheet date but is likely to complete in 2003/04.

24. CONTINGENT ASSET AND LIABILITIES
a) Contingent Asset
BW is currently negotiating with several utility companies to collectively settle a national wayleave agreement. This agreement, when
finalised, will provide BW with circa £10m in backdated payments. Negotiations had not been completed at the balance sheet date
but completion is expected during 2003/04. For the purposes of this year's accounts it is being recognised as a contingent asset.
b) Contingent Liabilities
BW has issued a guarantee to a subsidiary company.
Contingent liabilities arising from third party claims, valued at £5,800,000 (2002: £7,100,000), are not included in the balance sheet as
it is not considered likely that the amounts will fall due for payment.

25. PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENT
In 1999/2000 BW received a cash dowry of £17.7 million to take on obligations to maintain the River Tees navigation and Tees
Barrage which was acquired from the Commission for the New Towns. This dowry was originally accounted as a provision in
accordance with FRS12 “Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets”. BW regularly reviews its accounting policies in
accordance with FRS 18 “Accounting policies” and it is felt that accounting for the dowry as deferred income would be more
appropriate. BW have therefore made a prior year adjustment in this year's accounts. Full disclosure of the adjustment is shown in
Notes 13 and 14 to these accounts.
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FIVE YEAR SUMMARIES

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

BW Group*

BW

BW

BW

BW

2002/03

2001/02

2000/01

1999/00

1998/99

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

Direct income from:
Property

46,054

35,729

32,943

21,459

22,293

Leisure uses

21,940

19,877

17,419

15,044

13,093

4,449

4,889

6,089

6,625

3,794

27,866

43,019

66,645

51,524

19,795

Other income

7,422

6,418

5,087

3,287

2,506

Maintenance agreements

1,895

1,047

771

750

1,020

109,626

110,979

128,954

98,689

62,501

81,970

64,637

62,055

58,673

53,684

Total revenue

191,596

175,616

191,009

157,362

116,185

Operating (loss)/profit

(19,450)

Commercial uses
Contributions to non-statutory works

Direct income
Government grant

(9,938)

(287)

849

(1,562)

Share of operating surplus and losses of associates and
joint ventures

1,059

Profit on sale of investment properties

3,771

2,078

Profit on sale of other property rights

-

45,882

Income from associated undertakings

-

-

Interest payable net of receivable
Loss/(profit) for the financial year before taxation
Taxation on profits
Loss/(profits) for the financial year after taxation
Transfers to realised capital reserve
Revenue (loss)/profit retained

(34)
(14,654)

(1,472)
36,550

4,362

(2,665)

(10,292)

33,885

(8,775)
(19,067)

(5,926)
27,959

5,103

2,673

2,568

-

-

-

-

170

-

(188)
4,628
(73)

(563)
3,129
(277)

4,555

2,852

(5,030)

(2,396)

(475)

456

(1,265)
(259)
(731)
(990)
(1,837)
(2,827)

BALANCE SHEET
ASSETS EMPLOYED
396,599

362,716

Current assets

90,929

101,330

66,721

77,086

42,293

Creditors – amounts falling due within one year

69,502

58,951

66,609

49,627

32,350

Fixed assets

351,555

298,089

271,890

21,427

42,379

112

27,459

9,943

Total assets less current liabilities

418,026

405,095

351,667

325,548

281,833

Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year

(16,949)

(17,124)

Provisions for liabilities and charges

(13,021)

(12,452)

Net current assets

Deferred capital grant

(14,130)

(10,469)

(33,188)
(7,251)

(31,635)
(5,386)

(12,478)
(5,029)

373,926

365,050

311,228

288,527

264,326

359,190

348,714

294,492

270,341

246,140

FINANCED BY
Reserves
Reserves
Debt

14,736

16,336

16,736

18,186

18,186

373,926

365,050

311,228

288,527

264,326

317,599

292,900

293,158

247,703

230,956

25,224

15,752

18,239

23,372

26,050

6.6%

6.3%

6.8%

6.9%

7.0%

Investment properties
Net book value of investment properties (£000)
Annual revaluation of investment properties (£000)
Rental yield per accounts

*2002/03 is the first year that BW has presented consolidated accounts. Comparatives for Group results are not included for years
prior to 2002/03.
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